
                
CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

Council Chambers 
                                                                                                          401 E Third Street 

Kewanee, Illinois 61443 
Open Meeting starting at 7:00 p.m. 

Monday, April 27th, 2020 
 

(Amended) Posted by 3:00 p.m. April 25th, 2020 

 

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes  
b. Payroll 
c. Staff Reports 

5. Presentation of Bills and Claims 

6. Public Participation 

7. Business: 

 

a) Consideration of a Resolution #5208 authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute all 
documents that are necessary and proper for the City of Kewanee to apply to the state of Illinois 
Community Development Block Grant for funding through the Downstate Small Business 
Stabilization Program 

b) Discussion of MFT 20-00000-00-GM, 2020 Resurfacing and Seal Coat Program 
c) Consideration of a Resolution #5209 to approve an Illinois department of transportation’s 

resolution for maintenance under the Illinois highway code in the amount of $635,000  
d) Consideration of a Resolution #5210 to accept the bid from L.C. United Painting Co. Inc. for 

project #20-01, south water tower coating, in the amount of $271,000.00.  
e) Consideration of a Resolution #5211 to accept a proposed amendment to a professional 

services agreement with Dixon Engineering to provide construction inspection services.  
f) Consideration a Resolution #5212 to accept the bid from Performance Pipelining, Inc. for 

project #20-02, 2020 cured in place pipe (CIPP) sewer program, in the amount of $500,161.40. 
g) Consideration of a Resolution #5213 to ratify and authorize the expended funds used to make 

emergency repairs to the 20” influent force main at the wastewater treatment plant.  
h) Consideration of a Resolution #5214 approving the use of incentives under the small 

business interest payment program by Midwest Trailer Manufacturing. 
i) Consideration of a Resolution #5215 establishing guidelines for the use of incentives for a 

short term economic development program intended to help small businesses recover from the 
Covid-19 pandemic and its negative impacts on the local economy.  

j) Consideration of a Resolution #5216 to affirm the Mayor’s recommendation for appointments 
to various commissions and boards.   

k) Discussion  Ambulance Service to Neponset  

 
8. Council Communications: 

9. Announcements: 

10. Adjournment: 

 



 

 
 

 MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: April 24, 2020 
From: Gary Bradley, City Manager 
To: Mayor & Council 
RE:       Council Meeting of Monday, April 27, 2020 
 
REGULAR MEETING AT 7:00 P.M. 

 
 

1. Alternative Operations—As I’m sure you are aware, the Governor has extended the stay 
at home order through the end of May and added additional requirements such as the 
wearing of masks in public where social distancing is not an option.  We will work to 
develop alternatives that allow us to provide certain services, such as the reopening of the 
transfer station, so that we can better serve our customers.  We’re also preparing as a staff 
for some type of backlash as resistance to isolation begins to become stronger.  There are 
some new requirements expected to be in the next executive order that will be difficult to 
accomplish or enforce.      
 

2. Enterprise Zone — All of the communities but one have completed the required 
ordinances.  I’m working with a handful of companies and individuals that haven’t yet 
completed their annual reports to ensure that the benefits provided by the program can be 
accurately tracked.    

 
3. Budget Workshop—The next budget workshop will be on May 4th, via electronic meeting 

as previously conducted.       
 

4. Police Vehicle—We have taken possession of the 2020 Dodge Ram 1500 SSV (Special 
Service Vehicle) which is to be used in our Police Dept.  Staff is waiting to hear back from 
the up fitter, who will be installing the police equipment, once we get a date scheduled.  
The up fitting usually takes about 10 days.  It is our hope that the truck will be ready for 
service by the end of May.    

 
5. Excess Property—We received the appraisal for the property at 3rd and Main (surrounding 

the Spets building).  There was a mistake in the calculation of the value of the property.  
Once we receive a corrected document, we can run the legal notice in the paper then open 
sealed bids at a regular meeting, perhaps some time in June when we resume more 
traditional meetings.   

 
6. Francis Park — As previously noted, Francis Park will not open at its typical time due to 

the COVID-19 pandemic. The site will open when the “stay at home” executive orders 
have expired.  We have updated the City Website also. 

 
7. Police Training—During the budget workshop, Chief Ainley was asked to provide 



 
 

  

information about training requirements.  He’s included that information along with three 
articles that reference the “failure to train” liability.  The information immediately follows 
this memorandum.   

 
8. County-wide Meetings— We continue to have weekly meetings with the leadership of 

other communities in the County and key staff at Henry County.  There’s a great deal of 
concern about summer events being cancelled, including fireworks and concert series.  The 
not yet released executive order has also created a lot of concern regarding the lack of 
masks and face coverings available to the general public.   
 

9. DSBSP — Despite earlier indications that they would not be pursuing the program, it now 
appears that Galva and Geneseo are looking into the program, as well.  The resolution, 
though tabled at the last meeting, is on the agenda should the City Council opt to take 
action on the matter.   





































































 SYS DATE:04/24/20                     CITY OF KEWANEE                   SYS TIME:11:18
                               A / P   W A R R A N T   L I S T                    [NW1]
                                      REGISTER # 254
 DATE: 04/23/20                  Thursday April 23,2020                        PAGE   1

 PAYABLE TO                                                    AMOUNT
    INV NO            G/L NUMBER       DESCRIPTION                                DISTR
=======================================================================================

 01 ADVANCED BUSINESS SYSTEMS INC                              150.69
    INV 168664        01-11-512        MAINTENANCE CONTRACT                      150.69

 01 AIRGAS MID AMERICA                                         625.21
    9100191781        01-22-612        OXYGEN                                    166.46
    9970043580        01-22-612        OXYGEN                                    458.75

 01 ALEXIS FIRE EQUIP CO                                        35.00
    0067439-IN        01-22-830        LITE BOX BATTERY                           35.00

 01 ALTORFER INC                                               327.84
    02C825432         62-45-613        TRUCK/BACKHOES                            327.84

 01 AMEREN ILLINOIS                                          21839.73
    D04132020         01-11-571        STREET LIGHTS                            8043.43
    D04132020         01-52-571        PARKS                                      32.51
    D04132020         51-93-571        WTP                                      8255.13
    D04132020         52-93-571        WWTP                                     4376.59
    D04132020         54-54-571        FRANCIS PARK                               70.28
    D04132020         58-36-571        CEMETERY                                  145.50
    D04132020         62-45-571        MUNICIPAL BLDGS                           916.29

 01 AUCA CHICAGO MC LOCKBOX                                    123.60
    152194064         62-45-471        UNIFORMS                                   41.20
    1592202742        62-45-471        UNIFORMS                                   41.20
    1592211452        62-45-471        UNIFORMS                                   41.20

 01 BEA OF ILLINOIS                                           1905.46
    2208401           52-93-850        WWTP FORCEMAIN                           1905.46

 01 BLAIR, KYLE                                                 75.08
    D04152020         01-22-471        CLOTHING ALLOWANCE                         75.08

 01 BOCK INC                                                 57126.15
    73.0              51-93-515        CONTRACT PAYMENT                        15273.09
    73.0              52-93-515        CONTRACT PAYMENT                        41853.06

 01 BREEDLOVE'S SPORTING GOODS                                 518.20
    39666             01-22-471        K SHOOK CLOTHING                          180.85
    39787             01-22-159.7      EMT STUDENT POLOS                         337.35

 01 SALVADOR CEJA                                              500.00
    D04122020         62-45-513        W69 FRONT SEAT REPAIR                     500.00

 01 CROWE AUTO GROUP LLC                                     33652.65
    301985            62-45-613        FIRE SUV WIPER SWITCH                     111.00
    301997            62-45-613        FILTER                                     12.25
    301998            62-45-613        CEMETERY 79                                48.40
    D04242020         39-73-840        2020 DODGE RAM                          33481.00

 01 DINGES FIRE COMPANY                                        311.42
    PRE0257           01-22-471        J ROOF BOOTS                              311.42

 01 DORNER PRODUCTS, LLC.                                     5362.56
    152311-IN         51-93-512        PRESSURE REDUCEING VALVE                 5362.56

 01 EASTERN IOWA TIRE, INC                                      63.00
    100086798         62-45-513        5 HOLE TRUCK RIMS                          63.00

 01 ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCE ASSOCIA                             617.32
    930149            52-93-542        WWTP SAMPLE TESTING                       617.32



 SYS DATE:04/24/20                     CITY OF KEWANEE                   SYS TIME:11:18
                               A / P   W A R R A N T   L I S T                    [NW1]
                                      REGISTER # 254
 DATE: 04/23/20                  Thursday April 23,2020                        PAGE   2

 PAYABLE TO                                                    AMOUNT
    INV NO            G/L NUMBER       DESCRIPTION                                DISTR
=======================================================================================

 01 FARM KING OF KEWANEE                                       104.18
    812906            62-45-612        BOMAS PACKER                                2.34
    813080            58-36-652        CEM NEW LOCK KEYS                          39.42
    813088            52-93-653        HAMMER/5PK BLADES                          15.48
    813832            52-93-652        CAULKING                                   21.96
    813839            52-93-652        AAA BATTERIES                              24.98

 01 FORD & SONS INC                                            525.00
    2591811           51-42-615        GRASS SEED                                525.00

 01 FRIENDS OF THE ANIMALS                                    1333.33
    628696            01-21-539        SEMI MONTHLY PAYMENT                     1333.33

 01 GASVODA & ASSOCIATES, INC                                14524.00
    INV2000724        52-93-850        LAKE ST LIFT                            14524.00

 01 GUSTAFSON FORD                                             346.54
    170007            62-45-513        PWD 77                                    292.99
    7423              62-45-613        W362                                       53.55

 01 HEART TECHNOLOGIES INC                                    1116.84
    331589            57-44-870        TRANSFER STATION CAMERA                  1116.84

 01 HODGE'S 66 INC                                              45.90
    55130             62-45-513        ST 16 2002 WORKHOURSE                      45.90

 01 IMPACT NETWORKING                                          220.76
    1762031           01-11-512        MAINTENANCE CONTRACT                      201.26
    1765534           01-11-512        KONICA TONER                               19.50

 01 JOHNSON, RODNEY D                                          320.26
    D04112020         01-41-473        CLOTHING ALLOWANCE                        320.26

 01 KEY EQUIPMENT & SUPPLY CO                                   78.26
    158500            62-45-612        E1 SWEEPER                                 78.26

 01 KNOX COUNTY LANDFILL                                     36548.28
    D03312020         57-44-573        SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL                    36548.28

 01 KOENIG BODY & EQUIPMENT                                  11247.00
    JQ44117           39-73-840        2002 CHEVY CRANE TRK                    11247.00

 01 LEWIS TRUCK & AUTO BODY                                    382.40
    D04162020         62-45-513        PWD 77 REPAIR PANT ON ROOF                382.40

 01 MARTIN BROS COMPANIES INC                                  262.78
    549               58-36-652        SAND TO BACKFILL                          262.78

 01 MED-TECH RESOURCE LLC                                      114.95
    116589            01-22-612        MED SUPPLIES                              114.95

 01 MENARD'S                                                   308.72
    39412             01-52-652        MCKINLEY PARK BARRIERS                     31.39
    39928             52-93-653        1/4 HP PUMP                                54.99
    40129             01-52-652        PARKS HERBICIDES                          126.98
    40339             52-93-652        SUPPLIES                                   39.59
    40384             01-22-652        VINYL SHEET                                15.97
    40837             01-41-614        EAST ST MARKERS                            39.80

 01 MISSISSIPPI VALLEY PUMP INC                               7459.00
    13174             52-93-512        REBUILD PUMP FOR SLUDGE                  6979.00
    13187             52-93-850        HIGH ST LIFT                              480.00



 SYS DATE:04/24/20                     CITY OF KEWANEE                   SYS TIME:11:18
                               A / P   W A R R A N T   L I S T                    [NW1]
                                      REGISTER # 254
 DATE: 04/23/20                  Thursday April 23,2020                        PAGE   3

 PAYABLE TO                                                    AMOUNT
    INV NO            G/L NUMBER       DESCRIPTION                                DISTR
=======================================================================================

 01 MOORE TIRES KEWANEE                                         71.16
    K34640            62-45-513        CAR 445                                    21.03
    K34870            54-54-652        FP TRAILER TIRE                            50.13

 01 NORTHERN SAFETY CO INC                                      99.75
    981240769         51-42-473        TYVEK COVERALLS                            49.87
    981240769         52-43-473        TYVEK COVERALLS                            49.88

 01 NORTHWEST PLUMBING HEATING AC                              543.00
    31626             38-71-549        HVAC MAIN CONTRACT                        543.00

 01 O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES, IN                             219.67
    1143-380436       62-45-830        TOOL RENTAL RETURN                         66.99-
    1143-381227       62-45-613        SHOCKS RETURNED                           180.04-
    1143-382424       51-93-619        SUPER GLUE                                  2.99
    1143-382683       62-45-652        HEATING TOOL AND FUEL                       5.29
    1143-384606       62-45-830        FILTER WRENCH                              47.99
    1143-384689       62-45-613        CREDIT/RETURN                               7.49-
    1143-385057       62-45-613        POLICE CAR STOCK                           13.99
    1143-385066       52-93-619        MISC SUPPLIES                              57.95
    1143-385087       62-45-613        OIL FILTER                                  6.94
    1143-385113       52-93-512        CHAIN HOIST                               210.48
    1143-385458       52-93-619        SPARK PLUG                                  2.49
    1143-386298       52-43-512        BATTERY FOR GENERATOR                     126.07

 01 OFFICE SPECIALISTS INC                                     222.68
    1078251-0         01-41-537.4      CONNECT NEW DEVICE                         52.50
    1078914-1         38-71-611        CITY HALL SUPPLIES                         44.66
    1079680-2         38-71-611        CITY HALL SUPPLIES                         84.43
    1080437-0         38-71-611        CITY HALL SUPPLIES                         41.09

 01 OFFICE MACHINE CONSULTANTS INC                              33.85
    IN197891          01-22-537        COPIER MAINTENANCE                         33.85

 01 PANTHER UNIFORMS INC                                       350.20
    23539             01-22-471        Z CLARK CLOTHING                          187.60
    23540             01-22-471        A POWELL CLOTHING                         162.60

 01 PATRIOT TRAILER MANUFACTURING                              560.00
    1129              62-45-513        TAIL LIGHTS                               560.00

 01 PDC LABORATORIES INC                                      2173.46
    I9407821          51-93-542        CHLORIDE                                   19.46
    I9412071          51-93-542        COLIFORM/ECOLI                             40.00
    I9412162          51-93-542        COLIFORM/ECOLI                             36.00
    I9412409          51-93-542        COLIFORM/ECOLI                             20.00
    I9412417          51-93-542        CARBMATES                                1738.00
    I9412741          51-93-542        COLIFORM/ECOLI                             20.00
    I9412743          51-93-542        COLIFORM/ECOLI                            300.00

 01 POWER PROCESS EQUIPMENT INC                               4760.00
    40135168          51-93-512        N PLANT PUMP SHAFT                       4760.00

 01 RATLIFF BROS & CO                                        14871.75
    15783             52-93-850        WWTP FORCE MAIN                         14871.75

 01 SAM MANGIERI JR.                                           550.00



 SYS DATE:04/24/20                     CITY OF KEWANEE                   SYS TIME:11:18
                               A / P   W A R R A N T   L I S T                    [NW1]
                                      REGISTER # 254
 DATE: 04/23/20                  Thursday April 23,2020                        PAGE   4

 PAYABLE TO                                                    AMOUNT
    INV NO            G/L NUMBER       DESCRIPTION                                DISTR
=======================================================================================
    D04102020         01-11-549        CARPETS CLEANED                           250.00
    D04102020         01-21-549        CARPETS CLEANED                           300.00

 01 SIVCO WELDING COMPANY                                      996.85
    6135              62-45-513        SANI 49 DUMP BODY                         996.85

 01 STAR-COURIER                                               124.70
    41605             32-42-549        BIDDERS NOTICE                            124.70

 01 SULLIVAN DOOR COMPANY                                      105.00
    70374             58-36-651        CEMETERY SHED DOOR                        105.00

 01 TRIANGLE CONCRETE INC                                     1003.75
    9856              52-43-615        TENNEY ST                                1003.75

 01 UMB BANK, NA                                               318.00
    743836            46-84-730        REV BONDS SRS 2013                        318.00

 01 USA BLUEBOOK                                              1152.29
    174041            52-93-652        LAB SUPPLIES 4 WWTP                       102.29
    183916            51-93-512        REPLACE LEVER SENSORS                    1050.00

 01 VERIZON WIRELESS                                           928.92
    9851784709        01-22-552        FIRE CELL SERVICE                         114.94
    9852506693        01-21-552        POLICE CELLULAR                           813.98

 01 WALMART COMMUNITY                                          200.90
    D04162020         01-11-651        OFFICE SUPPLIES                            19.49
    D04162020         01-22-652        FILE FOLDERS                               10.85
    D04162020         38-71-611        OFFICE SUPPLIES                            14.88
    D04162020         01-11-651        GB OFFICE SUPPLIES                         13.05
    D04162020         52-43-651        16GB USB                                   15.76
    D04162020         52-43-651        16GB USB/MAILERS                           21.03
    D04162020         38-71-830        HINTON MONITOR                            105.84

 01 THOMSON REUTERS - WEST                                     522.00
    842165935         01-21-563        2020 LAW BOOKS                            522.00

   **  TOTAL CHECKS TO BE ISSUED                            227980.04



 SYS DATE:04/24/20                     CITY OF KEWANEE                   SYS TIME:11:18
                               A / P   W A R R A N T   L I S T                    [NW1]
                                      REGISTER # 254
 DATE: 04/23/20                  Thursday April 23,2020                        PAGE   5

     FUND                                                      AMOUNT
    INV NO            G/L NUMBER       DESCRIPTION                                DISTR
=======================================================================================

    GENERAL FUND                                             14475.84

    WATER IMPROVEMENT                                          124.70

    CAPITAL MAINTENANCE/MUN. BLDG.                             833.90

    ACQUISITION FUND                                         44728.00

    2013 REFUNDING BOND                                        318.00

    WATER FUND                                               37452.10

    SEWER FUND                                               87353.88

    FRANCIS PARK                                               120.41

    SANITATION                                               37665.12

    CEMETERY FUND                                              552.70

    CENTRAL MAINTENANCE                                       4355.39

      *** GRAND TOTAL ***                                   227980.04

          TOTAL FOR REGULAR CHECKS:                        226,646.71
          TOTAL FOR DIRECT PAY VENDORS:                      1,333.33



 SYS DATE:04/24/20                     CITY OF KEWANEE                   SYS TIME:11:18
                               A / P   W A R R A N T   L I S T                    [NW1]

 DATE: 04/23/20                  Thursday April 23,2020                        PAGE   6

=======================================================================================
                                A/P MANUAL CHECK POSTING LIST
    POSTINGS FROM ALL CHECK REGISTRATION RUNS(NR) SINCE LAST CHECK VOUCHER RUN(NCR)
=======================================================================================
 PAYABLE TO                     CHECK DATE    CHECK NO         AMOUNT
   REG#  INV NO          G/L NUMBER      DESCRIPTION                              DISTR
=======================================================================================
 78 EXCELLED SHEEPSKIN AND LEATHER04/23/20    CC042320      200000.00
    457  RES-5206        78-61-900       REV LOAN-RES 5206                    200000.00

   **  TOTAL MANUAL CHECKS REGISTERED                       200000.00

=======================================================================================
   REPORT SUMMARY
=======================================================================================
   CASH             CHECKS TO           REGISTERED
   FUND             BE ISSUED             MANUAL               TOTAL
=======================================================================================
    01             227980.04                  .00           227980.04
    78                   .00            200000.00           200000.00
                  ------------         ------------        ------------
  TOTAL CASH       227980.04            200000.00           427980.04

=======================================================================================
   DISTR            CHECKS TO           REGISTERED
   FUND             BE ISSUED             MANUAL               TOTAL
=======================================================================================
    01              14475.84                  .00            14475.84
    32                124.70                  .00              124.70
    38                833.90                  .00              833.90
    39              44728.00                  .00            44728.00
    46                318.00                  .00              318.00
    51              37452.10                  .00            37452.10
    52              87353.88                  .00            87353.88
    54                120.41                  .00              120.41
    57              37665.12                  .00            37665.12
    58                552.70                  .00              552.70
    62               4355.39                  .00             4355.39
    78                   .00            200000.00           200000.00
                  ------------         ------------        ------------
  TOTAL DISTR      227980.04            200000.00           427980.04





                                  Item A 

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE April 27th, 2020 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Resolution #5208 

AGENDA TITLE A resolution authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to 
execute all documents that are necessary and proper 
for the City of Kewanee to apply to the state of Illinois 
Community Development Block Grant for funding 
through the Downstate Small Business Stabilization 
Program 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Administration 

PRESENTER Gary Bradley, City Manager 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

N/A  

Budget Line Item: N/A 

Balance Available N/A 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[ ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE Authorizes the execution of documents required for 
CDBG Grant Application. 

BACKGROUND The state diverted some of its CDBG funds to create 
a program for small businesses in the Downstate 
Region.  The application process is somewhat 
extensive, and many businesses will have sought 
funding through other programs, making them 
ineligible for this program.  But there may be some 
that qualify which express an interest.  Passing the 
resolution is a requirement.  It doesn’t mean anyone 
will apply, or qualify, or be awarded.   



                                  Item A 

SPECIAL NOTES The grant is capped at $25,000 per business.  The 
City enters into an agreement with the business and 
if they fail to meet the grant requirements, the City is 
responsible for paying the money back to the state. 

ANALYSIS N/A 

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

Public Hearing Notice published, Public Hearing held 
4/9/20 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

N/A     

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Staff recommends approval. 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

Resolution # 5208, proposed agreement(s) 

  



RESOLUTION NO. 5208 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS 
THAT ARE NECESSARY AND PROPER FOR THE CITY OF KEWANEE TO APPLY TO THE STATE OF 
ILLINOIS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FOR FUNDING THROUGH THE 
DOWNSTATE SMALL BUSINESS STABILIZATION PROGRAM.   
 
WHEREAS,  The Global Pandemic commonly known as COVID-19 has made it difficult for many small 

businesses remain open and provide economic activity that supports their employees and our 
local, state, and national economies; and 

WHEREAS, The City of Kewanee is applying to the State of Illinois for a Community Development Block 
Grant Program grant, and  

WHEREAS,  It is necessary that an application be made, and agreements entered with the State of Illinois.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KEWANEE as follows: 
 
 1) That the City of Kewanee apply for a grant under the terms and conditions of the State of Illinois 

and shall enter into and agree to the understandings and assurances contained in said application. 
 
 2) That the Mayor and City Clerk on behalf of the City are authorized to execute such documents 

and all other documents that are necessary and proper for the preparation and submittal of said 
application. 

 
 3) That the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to provide such additional information as may be 

required to accomplish the obtaining of such grant. 
 

4) This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and approval as 
provided by law. 

 

   Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 27th day of April 2020. 
ATTEST:   
   
   
Rabecka Jones, City Clerk  Gary Moore, Mayor 

 
 
 
 RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 

Mayor Gary Moore     
Council Member Mike Komnick     

Council Member Steve Faber     
Council Member Chris Colomer     

Council Member Michael Yaklich     



   

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE April 27, 2020 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

N/A 

AGENDA TITLE Discussion of MFT 20-00000-00-GM, 2020 
Resurfacing and Seal Coat Program 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Public Works 

PRESENTER Scott Hinton, City Engineer 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

N/A  

Budget Line Item: 15-41-514 

Balance Available $615,000 in the proposed 
FY2021. 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[  ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE General discussion of options to provide direction to 
staff regarding MFT-funded street maintenance 
program. 



   

BACKGROUND Council previously approved an intergovernmental 
agreement with Henry County to allow the Henry 
County Highway Department (HCHD) to perform 
portions of the 2020 street maintenance program.  
The HCHD’s portion of the work includes installing all 
sealcoating and resurfacing in the downtown area.  
City staff solicited and received bids from contractors 
to perform the remaining work which includes all 
asphalt milling and prep work for the HCHD’s 
sealcoat and resurfacing operations.  It also includes 
resurfacing on Prospect Street.  The HCHD has 
scaled back operations due to the COVID-19 
pandemic and is no longer able to perform all the 
anticipated work.  It is currently unknown how much, 
if any, work the HCHD is able to perform.  There are 
various options as to how the City may proceed.  
Among them: 

1) Issue a contract to the lowest responsive and 
responsible bidder and proceed with only work 
which is unrelated to the HCHD work.  This will 
include a portion of the resurfacing, but no 
sealcoat work. 

2) Issue a contract to the lowest responsive and 
responsible bidder and increase the contract value 
to include the resurfacing work allocated to the 
HCHD. Sealcoat work wasn’t included in the 
contract, so can’t be added. 

3) Issue a contract and proceed as in #2 above and 
solicit bids for a separate contract to perform all 
prep and installation for the sealcoat work.   

4) Don’t issue a contract, instead re-bid the project to 
include all of the HCHD work.  This could include 
all resurfacing and sealcoating work although likely 
at an increased cost.     

5) Don’t issue a contract, perform no work in 2020, 
and save all funds until 2021.    

SPECIAL NOTES N/A 

ANALYSIS N/A     

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

N/A 



   

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

N/A    

STAFF RECOMMENDATION N/A 

PROCUREMENT POLICY 
VERIFICATION 

N/A 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

Bid tabulation and lowest responsive and responsible 
bid submittal attached. 

 



CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE April 27, 2020 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Resolution #5209 

AGENDA TITLE Approval of a Resolution for Maintenance Under 
the Illinois Highway Code 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Public Works 

PRESENTER Scott Hinton, City Engineer 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

Up to $635,000.  $635,000 
in Motor Fuel Tax Funds are 
budgeted for street 
maintenance purposes in 
FY2021. 

Budget Line Item: 15-41-514

Balance Available Est. $882,824 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[  ] Yes [X] No

PURPOSE Approval of an Illinois Department of Transportation 
form titled Resolution for Maintenance Under the 
Illinois Highway Code is necessary to appropriate 
Motor Fuel Tax Funds for street maintenance.   

Item C



   

BACKGROUND The proposed FY2021 budget includes the 
expenditure of $635,000 in MFT funds for street 
maintenance.  This includes $20,000 for pothole 
patching materials to be used by the Street 
Department and $615,000 for street maintenance 
work performed by the Henry County Highway 
Department through an intergovernmental agreement 
and contracted through the competitive bidding 
process to a local contractor. 
This form is the vehicle through which the City of 
Kewanee requests approval from IDOT to appropriate 
MFT Funds.  Approval of this form does not obligate 
the City to spend the funds nor does it approve 
contracts for the work or the expenditures.     

SPECIAL NOTES N/A 

ANALYSIS Staff estimates a FY2020 year-end MFT balance of 
$363,299 and IDOT estimates FY2021 MFT revenues 
of $519,525.  This leaves an estimated FY2021 year-
end balance of $247,824 if all $635,000 is spent in 
FY2021.  Staff will monitor the effect of the COVID-19 
pandemic on MFT revenues to ensure expenditures 
don’t exceed available funding. 

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

N/A 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

N/A    

STAFF 
RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends approving the form. 

PROCUREMENT POLICY 
VERIFICATION 

Approving this form does not obligate or approve the 
expenditure of MFT Funds        

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

Form attached. 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 5209 
 
A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AN ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION’S RESOLUTION 
FOR MAINTENANCE UNDER THE ILLINOIS HIGHWAY CODE IN THE AMOUNT OF $635,000 AND 
DECLARING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE IMMEDIATELY. 
 
WHEREAS,  The City Council considers it in the best interest of the citizens of the City of Kewanee to 

appropriate Motor Fuel Tax (MFT) monies for the purpose of street maintenance in the City of 
Kewanee; and, 

WHEREAS,  A Resolution for Maintenance Under the Illinois Highway Code is necessary to use MFT monies 
for the purpose of street maintenance; and, 

WHEREAS, The Fiscal Year 2021 street maintenance funded with MFT monies will include the purchase of 
pothole patching materials to be placed by City of Kewanee staff, street repair and maintenance 
performed by the Henry County Highway Department via intergovernmental agreement with 
Henry County, and street repair and maintenance performed in the annual street maintenance 
program known as Section 20-00000-00-GM; and, 

WHEREAS, Work performed in Section 20-00000-00-GM will be contracted through the competitive bidding 
process; and,  

WHEREAS, Approval of this form appropriates MFT funds, but does not obligate the City of Kewanee to 
spend any monies. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KEWANEE THAT: 

Section 1 There is hereby appropriated the sum of $635,000 of Motor Fuel Tax funds for the purpose of 
maintaining streets and highways under the applicable provisions of the Illinois Highway Code 
for the period of May 1, 2020 to April 30, 2021. 

 
Section 2 Only those streets, highways, and operations as listed and described on the approved Municipal 

Estimate of Maintenance Costs, including supplemental or revised estimates approved in 
connection with this resolution, are eligible for maintenance with Motor Fuel Tax funds during 
the period as specified above. 

 
Section 3 The City Clerk shall, as soon as practicable after the close of the period as stated in Section 1 

hereof, submit to the Illinois Department of Transportation, on forms furnished by said 
Department, a certified statement showing expenditures from and balances remaining in the 
account(s) for this period.   

 
Section 4 The City Clerk shall immediately transmit two certified copies of this resolution to the district 

office of the Illinois Department of Transportation at 619 Depot Avenue, Dixon, Illinois, 61021. 
 
Section 5 This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and approval as 

provided by law.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 27th day of April 2020. 
ATTEST: 
 

  

   
   
Rabecka Jones, City Clerk  Gary Moore, Mayor 

 
 
 RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 

Mayor Gary Moore     
Council Member Mike Komnick     

Council Member Steve Faber     
Council Member Chris Colomer     

Council Member Michael Yaklich     



















CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE April 27, 2020 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Resolution #5210 

AGENDA TITLE Approval of a Resolution accepting the lowest 
responsive and responsible bid from L.C. United 
Painting Co, Inc. for Project #20-01, South Water Tower 
Coating, in the amount of $271,000. 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Public Works 

PRESENTER Scott Hinton, City Engineer 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as recommended: $271,000. 

Budget Line Item: 32-42-850

Balance Available $450,000 in the proposed 
FY2021 budget 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[  ] Yes [X] No

PURPOSE Approval of the bid is necessary to proceed with the 
contract documents for the South Water Tower Coating 
project. 

Item D



   

BACKGROUND The coating systems on the South Water Tower are at 
the end of their lives and are no longer protecting the 
structure in many areas.  Also, there are several valves 
and other minor items in need of repair.  Staff worked 
with Dixon Engineering to evaluate the condition of the 
tower and determine the appropriate repairs and 
coatings.  A bid package was assembled with 
specifications to overcoat the exterior of the tank, 
sandblast and coat the wet interior, and spot coat 
deteriorated areas of the dry interior.  The base bid 
includes all necessary repair work and coatings.  An 
alternate bid item was included to install a mixer in the 
tank to aid in preventing ice and stagnant water.  The 
project was advertised for bids on March 27, 2020 and 
eleven companies requested bid packages.  Bids were 
received and publicly read on April 21, 2020 with the 
following results:    

$292,000 
 

LC United 
$416,300 

 
Viking Painting 

$448,700 
 

TMI Coatings 
$481,000 

 
Utility Services 

Not Read 
 

Seven Brothers 
Not Read 

 
Tecorp 

The bids from Seven Brothers and Tecorp we received 
after the specified bid opening time so were not read.  

SPECIAL NOTES N/A 

ANALYSIS Funds have been set aside in the Acquisition Fund for 
several years to fund the water tower coatings.  
Sufficient funds are budgeted and available for this 
project.  While this is an expensive project, it’s more cost 
efficient to renew the coatings than to defer the 
maintenance until such time as structural repairs are 
also necessary.   

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

This project was advertised on the City’s website and 
two times in the local newspaper. 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

N/A    



   

STAFF 
RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends accepting the base bid of $271,000 
from L.C. United Painting Co., Inc. and proceeding with 
execution of the contract documents.  Staff does not 
recommend accepting the alternate bid of $21,000 for 
the mixer.  While the mixer could be beneficial at times, 
it’s not a necessity and the funds can be better spent in 
the future on higher priority items.  

PROCUREMENT POLICY 
VERIFICATION 

This project was competitively bid in accordance with the 
the Illinois State Statutes which govern the procurement 
of publicly-funded construction contracts. 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

Bid tabulation and contract attached. 

 



CITY OF KEWANEE

CITY HALL

401 EAST THIRD ST.

KEWANEE, IL. 61443
TABULATION OF BIDS

BIDDER NAME : 

DATE: 4/21/2020 PROJECT:2020 South Water Tower Coating BIDDER ADDRESS : 50805 Rizzo Drive

TIME:  11:00AM OWNER: City of Kewanee CITY/STATE/ZIP : Shelby Twp., MI. 48315

WITNESS: PROJECT #: BID GUARANTEE : 

ITE

M 

NO ITEM UNIT

QUANTIT

Y

ESTIMATED    

UNIT PRICE

ESTIMATE         

TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL

1 OVERFLOW FLAP GATE EA 1 4000.00 4000.00 2000.00 2000.00 3600.00 3600.00 2800.00 2800.00 700.00 700.00

2 MUD VALVE EA 1 6000.00 6000.00 4000.00 4000.00 7200.00 7200.00 5100.00 5100.00 2600.00 2600.00

3 ROOF VENT EA 1 8000.00 8000.00 6000.00 6000.00 8600.00 8600.00 6900.00 6900.00 4800.00 4800.00

4 ACCESS TUBE AIR GAPE SEAL EA 1 4000.00 4000.00 4000.00 4000.00 5800.00 5800.00 3800.00 3800.00 2000.00 2000.00

5 CATHODIC CLIP AND COUPLING EA 1 4000.00 4000.00 2500.00 2500.00 2200.00 2200.00 2300.00 2300.00 2600.00 2600.00

6 ROOF PAINTER'S RAILING LS 1 8000.00 8000.00 5500.00 5500.00 12600.00 12600.00 10600.00 10600.00 9300.00 9300.00

7 EXTERIOR OVERCOAT LS 1 100000.00 100000.00 98000.00 98000.00 159500.00 159500.00 159000.00 159000.00 215000.00 215000.00

8 WET INTERIOR REPAINT LS 1 160000.00 160000.00 119000.00 119000.00 167800.00 167800.00 232000.00 232000.00 180000.00 180000.00

9 SEAM SEALER LS 1 4000.00 4000.00 3000.00 3000.00 1000.00 1000.00 2400.00 2400.00 2500.00 2500.00

10 PARTIAL DRY INTERIOR REPAINT LS 1 30000.00 30000.00 27000.00 27000.00 20000.00 20000.00 4800.00 4800.00 34000.00 34000.00

11 MIXER-ALTERNATIVE LS 1 30000.00 30000.00 21000.00 21000.00 28000.00 28000.00 19000.00 19000.00 27500.00 27500.00

TOTAL ESTIMATE/ BID = 358,000.00 292,000.00 416,300.00 448,700.00 481,000.00

COMPARISON TO ESTIMATE -- -18.44% 16.28% 25.34% 34.36%

Tecorp, Inc.

2221 Muriel Ct.

Joliet, IL. 60433

3291 Terminal Drive

St. Paul, MN. 55121

TMI Coatings, Inc. Utility Services Co., Inc.

535 Courtney Hodges Blvd.

Perry, GA. 31069

LATE BID

L.C. United Painting Co., Inc. Viking Painting, LLC

Bid Bond Bid Bond Bid Bond Bid Bond

3525 Barbara Drive

Sterling Heights, MI. 48310

305 N. 93rd Street

Omaha, NE. 68114

Seven Brothers Painting

NOT READ

LATE BID

NOT READ

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE



CITY OF KEWANEE 
CONTRACT 

 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and concluded this _  day of   , A.D., 

2020, between L.C. United Painting Co., Inc. of 3525 Barbara Drive, Sterling Heights, MI  48310 

hereinafter referred to as the “CONTRACTOR,” and the CITY OF KEWANEE, ILLINOIS, 

hereinafter referred to as the “CITY;” 

WITNESSETH, that the CONTRACTOR for and in consideration of the payments to be made 

to it by the CITY in the amount of TWO HUNDRED SEVENTY ONE THOUSAND (271,000.00) 

DOLLARS hereby covenants and agrees, to and with the CITY, that it shall and will in good and 

workmanlike manner, furnish all the labor and material for PROJECT #20-01, SOUTH WATER 

TOWER COATING as per the CONTRACTOR’S Proposal dated 4/21/20. 

 
Such work to be under the direction and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer, and in 

accordance with the contractor’s Proposal, which is part of this contract.  The work to be commenced 

not later than 10 days after the execution of this contract unless mutually agreed upon by the CITY and 

CONTRACTOR; to progress regularly and uninterruptedly after it shall have been begun excepting as 

shall otherwise be ordered by the City Council of the City of Kewanee (hereinafter referred to as the 

“City Council”), or its authorized representative, and shall be finished and fully completed within forty-

five (45) calendar days; PROVIDED, however that if the time of the performance of the contract herein 

be for any reason either expressly or by implication extended, such extension shall not affect the 

validity of this contract. 

The Contractor further agrees that the unit prices submitted are for the purpose of obtaining a 

gross sum, and for use in computing the value of extras and deductions; that if there is a discrepancy 

between the gross sum bid and that resulting from the summation of the quantities multiplied by their 



2  

respective unit prices, the latter shall apply.  When this contract shall be wholly carried out and 

completed on the part of the Contractor, and when said work has been accepted by the City, a sum of 

money shall be computed by multiplying the following unit prices by the quantity of items 

completed, it being understood that the following total sum of money listed is for the purpose of 

determining the amount of the performance, labor, material and maintenance bond only.  Such 

payment shall be made as provided for in the said specifications. 

This Contract calls for the construction of a “public work” within the meaning of the Illinois 

Prevailing Wage Act, 820 ILCS 130/.01 et seq. (“the Act”).  The Act requires contractors, 

subcontractors, and truckers to pay laborers, workers, and mechanics performing services on public 

works projects not less than the “prevailing rate of wages” (hourly cash wages plus fringe benefits) 

in the county where the work is performed.  The prevailing wage rates for projects for the City of 

Kewanee are updated regularly by the Illinois Department of Labor and may be found at: 

https://www.illinois.gov/idol/Laws-Rules/CONMED/Documents/2016%20Rates/Rock%20Island.pdf 

 
All contractors, subcontractors, and truckers rendering services under this contract must 

comply with all requirements of the Act, including but not limited to, all wage, notice and record 

keeping duties.  All contractors, subcontractors, and truckers shall keep an accurate record showing 

the names and occupations of all laborers, workers, and mechanics employed by them on this 

contract, and also showing the actual hourly wages paid to each of such persons and shall preserve 

their weekly payroll records for a period of three (3) years from the date of completion of the contract.  

Weekly certified payrolls shall be sent to the City Engineer. 

It is further provided that the CONTRACTOR shall upon the sealing of this contract, file 

with the CITY a Certificate of Insurance meeting the requirements of the City of  Kewanee Special 

Provision for Insurance Requirements. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Parties have executed these presents on the date above 

mentioned. 

https://www.illinois.gov/idol/Laws-Rules/CONMED/Documents/2016%20Rates/Rock%20Island.pdf


3  

CONTRACTOR: CITY: 
 

CITY OF KEWANEE, ILLINOIS 

 

 
 
By: By: 

Attest: 

 

 

Mayor 

 
 
 
City Clerk 

 
 
 

 































RESOLUTION NO. 5210 
 
A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT THE BID FROM L.C. UNITED PAINTING CO. INC. FOR PROJECT #20-
01, SOUTH WATER TOWER COATING, IN THE AMOUNT OF $271,000.00 AND DECLARING THAT 
THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE IMMEDIATELY. 
 
WHEREAS,  The City Council recognizes that the coating systems at the South Water Tower have reached the 

end of their useful lives and are failing in many areas; and, 

WHEREAS,  Bids were solicited to replace the coating systems and make minor associated repairs and those 
bids received on time were opened and publicly read on April 21, 2020; and, 

WHEREAS, L.C. United Painting Co. Inc. of 3525 Barbara Drive, Sterling Heights, MI 48310 submitted the 
lowest responsive and responsible bid of $292,000.00; and, 

WHEREAS, L.C. United Painting Co, Inc.’s bid includes a $271,000.00 Base Bid and a $21,000.00 Alternate 
Bid to install a mixer inside the water tower; and, 

WHEREAS, Staff has determined the mixer is unnecessary; and, 

WHEREAS, $450,000.00 is allocated for this work in the proposed FY2021 budget; and, 

WHEREAS, Staff recommends the City of Kewanee enter into a contract with L.C. United Painting Co. Inc. 
for the $271,000.00 Base Bid, but not the Alternate Bid of $21,000.00. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KEWANEE THAT: 

Section 1 The bid of L.C. United Painting, Inc. is hereby accepted. 
 
Section 2 The Mayor, City Clerk, City Manager, and City Engineer are hereby authorized to execute and 

attest to all necessary contract documents with L.C. United Painting, Inc. for Project #20-01, 
South Water Tower Coating, in the amount of $271,000.00; provided, however, that said contract 
documents are in substantially similar form and content to that attached hereto and incorporated 
herein. 

 
Section 3 This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and approval as 

provided by law.   
 
 
 

   Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 27th day of April 2020. 
ATTEST: 
 

  

   
   
Rabecka Jones, City Clerk  Gary Moore, Mayor 

 
 
 RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 

Mayor Gary Moore     
Council Member Mike Komnick     

Council Member Steve Faber     
Council Member Chris Colomer     

Council Member Michael Yaklich     



CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE April 27, 2020 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Resolution #5211 

AGENDA TITLE Approval of an Amendment to an Agreement with 
Dixon Engineering for construction inspection 
services at to the South Water Tower Coating project 
in the amount of $47,350. 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Public Works 

PRESENTER Scott Hinton, City Engineer 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

$47,350. 

Budget Line Item: 32-42-532

Balance Available $50,000 in the proposed 
FY2021 budget 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[  ] Yes [X] No

PURPOSE Approval of the Amendment to the Agreement is 
necessary to provide for construction inspection 
services at the South Water Tower Coating project. 

Item E



   

BACKGROUND Staff sought Statements of Qualifications from 
engineering firms that specialize in painting and 
coating storage tanks and towers.  There are no local 
firms that specialize in this service.  Staff found Dixon 
Engineering of Greenfield WI to be the most qualified 
to provide condition evaluation, technical 
specification writing, and construction inspection 
services for the South Water Tank Coating project.  
Staff entered into an Agreement with Dixon 
Engineering for $5,575 to evaluate the existing 
condition of the South Tower and to use this 
information to develop technical specifications to 
solicit bids.  Staff proposes to amend the Agreement 
to include construction inspection services.    

SPECIAL NOTES N/A 

ANALYSIS Coating steel storage tanks and towers is specialized 
work that can be difficult to perform properly.  Staff 
believes it’s in the City’s best interest to engage a 
consulting firm with experience in such work to 
provide construction inspection services for the South 
Tower Project.  This will help ensure all work is 
performed properly and the coating systems don’t fail 
prematurely.      

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

N/A 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

N/A    

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Staff recommends amending the Agreement with 
Dixon Engineering to add construction inspection 
services for standard rates at the not-to-exceed price 
of $47,350.  

PROCUREMENT POLICY 
VERIFICATION 

Statements of Qualifications were reviewed from 
several firms as part of the Qualifications-Based 
Selection (QBS) process used to select Dixon 
Engineering.       

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

 
The executed Agreement and proposed Amendment 
are attached. 

 



 DIXON 
ENGINEERING & INSPECTION SERVICES 
FOR THE COATING INDUSTRY 

  
 4811 S. 76th St., Suite 109 
 Greenfield, WI 53220 
 Telephone: (414) 529-1859 
 Fax: (414) 282-7830 
  

 

Exhibit K, A, C-1 Owner: City of Kewanee Page 1 of 6 
Contract No: 13-37-04-02/IA2020TSW-2147 

Amendment No: 1 

 

   EXHIBIT K:  Agreement Between  
Owner and DIXON 

AMENDMENT TO OWNER-DIXON AGREEMENT 
 
The Effective Date of this Amendment is:                 
 
Background Data: 
Effective Date of Owner-DIXON Agreement: 
Owner: City of Kewanee, IL 
DIXON: 4811 S. 76th Street, Greenfield, WI 53220 
Project: 500,000 Gallon Spheroid (South) 

 
Nature of Amendment:  
x Additional Services to be performed by DIXON. 

x Modifications to services of DIXON. 

x Modifications to responsibilities of Owner. 

x Modifications of payment to DIXON. 

x Modifications to time(s) for rendering services. 

Description of Modifications: 
Project Administration, Preconstruction Meeting, Weld Coating, Wet Interior, Exterior, Dry Interior 
Coating Observations, and One Year ROV Warranty on the 500,000 Gallon Spheroid (South). 
 
Agreement Summary:  
Original agreement amount:      $5,575 

Net change for prior amendments:     $0 

This amendment amount:     $47,350 

Adjusted Agreement amount:     $52,925 

Change in time for services (days or date, as applicable): 28 days 

The foregoing Agreement Summary is for reference only and does not alter the terms of Agreement, 
including those set forth in Exhibit C with the exception of amendment increase and time extension if 
applicable.  
 
Owner and DIXON hereby agree to modify the above referenced Agreement as set forth in this 
Agreement. All provisions of the Agreement not modified by this or previous Amendments remain in 
effect.  
 
                                                                                      
DIXON Signature     TITLE             DATE   

                                                                                      
Owner Signature     TITLE             DATE    



Exhibit K, A, C-1, C-2 Owner: City of Kewanee Page 2 of 6 
Contract No: 13-37-04-02/IA2020TSW-2147 

Amendment No: 1 

EXHIBIT A:  Agreement Between  
Owner and DIXON 

DIXON’S SERVICES AND OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
PART 1 
 
A1.01 Construction Phase:    

A. Basic Services: 
1. DIXON will consult with Owner and act as Owner’s representative as provided in the 

Construction Contract. The extent and limitations of the duties, responsibilities, and authority 
of DIXON shall be as assigned in EJCDC C-700-18 Standard General Conditions of the 
Construction Contract.  

2. All of Owner’s instructions to Contractor will be issued through DIXON, which shall have 
authority to act on behalf of Owner in dealings with Contractor to the extent provided in this 
Agreement and the Construction Contract except as otherwise provided in writing.  

3. Engineer or RPR has authority to Stop Work if Engineer or RPR questions the quality of 
Work or rejects the Work, or if there (in the sole opinion of Engineer or RPR) a potential for 
creating an environmental contamination. 

4. Finalize Project to observe all items in the contract specifications have been completed and 
review the quality of workmanship.  

5. Duration of Construction Phase:  The Construction Phase will terminate upon written 
recommendation by DIXON for final payment to Contractors.   

A. RPR Services for Maintenance of Existing Structures 
1. Perform services expected of DIXON RPR and as detailed in the EJCDC Construction 

Contract General Conditions, GC-700-18. 
2. Attend a Preconstruction Meeting, and address questions regarding observation services and 

coordination of field observations. 
3. Hold Point General: 

a. Hold Point is a stage of the Construction Project where the Contractor stops Work.  Work 
commences again after the Work is observed and reviewed for compliance.  

b. A Hold Point Site visit is one observation trip to perform one of the functions below.  The 
number of Site visits required are estimates.   

c. If two Job Tasks are performed during the same trip, there is no additional charge (i.e. 
exterior intermediate and pit piping primer). 

d. The Site visit fees may vary between services (i.e. welding vs. coating) based on the 
higher compensated weld observer. Hold Point are itemized in EXHIBIT C, Attachment 
C-1. 

4. Hold Point Weld/Modifications- Observe, Record, Report, and: 
a. Observe repair, and or the installation of work for specifications compliance. All weld 

repairs will be visually observed for surface defects (i.e. undercut, negative 
reinforcement, non-fusion, etc.). 

5. Hold Points and RPR Coating Observation Services Common to Hold Point:  All services 
will not be necessary each Site visit observation. 
a. Review abrasive and coating materials for approved manufactures. 
b. Measure surface profile created by abrasive blast cleaning by compressive tape or surface 

comparator. 
c. Observe abrasive blast cleanliness for specification requirements using SSPC Visual 

Standards, latest edition thereof. 
d. Review coating mixing, thinning, and manufacturer’s application requirements. 
e. Monitor environmental conditions prior to and during coating application (i.e. ambient 

temperature, surface temperature, relative humidity, and dew point). 
f. Observe wet interior using high/low voltage holiday detection. 



Exhibit K, A, C-1, C-2 Owner: City of Kewanee Page 3 of 6 
Contract No: 13-37-04-02/IA2020TSW-2147 

Amendment No: 1 

g. Observe applied coating for dry film thickness, coverage, uniformity, and cure. 
6. Hold Point Coating Wet Interior - Observe, Record, Report, and: 

a. Verify test area for abrasive cleaning meets or exceeds minimum of specified standard 
b. Collect spent abrasive for sampling and testing. 
c. Abrasive blast cleaning prior to application of the prime coat. 
d. Spot power tool cleaning prior to the prime coat. 
e. Prime coat prior to application of the next coat. 
f. Intermediate coat prior to application of the stripe or topcoat. 
g. Topcoat for compliance with specifications. 

7. Hold Point Coating Exterior - Observe, Record, Report, and: 
a. Verify test area for high (HPWC) pressure water blast cleaning meets or exceeds 

minimum specified standard. 
b. HPWC for thoroughness and compliance with specifications and verify test area meets or 

exceeds minimum specified standard for spot tool cleaning (SP-11) or abrasive blast 
cleaning.  

c. Spot power tool, feathering, and compliance with specifications. 
d. Prime coat prior to application of the epoxy intermediate coat.  
e. Urethane intermediate coat prior to application of the topcoat. 
f. Topcoat for compliance with specifications.  
g. Application of the lettering/logo for thoroughness, dimensions (visual only) and aesthetic 

appearance in accordance with specification requirements, and to verify no damage 
occurred during lettering. 

8. Hold Point Coating Dry Interior- Observe, Record, Report, and: 
a. Abrasive blast cleaning prior to application of the prime coat. 
b. Spot power tool cleaning for thoroughness, surface profile, feathering, and compliance 

with specifications. 
c. Prime coat prior to application of the intermediate coat. 
d. Topcoat for compliance with specifications.  Review all contract items to assure they 

have been completed according to contract requirements.   
9. Hold Point Project Finalization: 

a. Review all repairs not installed until after coating. 
b. Examine entire project for damage that occurred during construction or post construction 

from rigging and de-rigging or other causes. 
c. Observe Site for restoration to pre-project conditions. 
d. Formulate a punch list of items to complete. 
e. Create a second punch list if needed before finalization. 
f. Finalize the project to assure all items in the contract specifications have been completed, 

and the quality of workmanship meets contract requirements. 
B. Construction Phase - Owner’s Responsibilities: 

1. Inform DIXON in writing of any specific requirements of safety or security programs that are 
applicable to DIXON, as a visitor to the Site. 

2. Attend and participate in the Preconstruction conferences, construction progress and other 
job-related meetings, and Site visits to determine Substantial Completion and readiness of the 
completed Work for final payment.  

3. If Owner, or Owner and Contractor, modify the duties, responsibilities, and authority of 
DIXON in the Construction Contract, or modify other terms of the Construction Contract 
having a direct bearing on DIXON, then Owner shall compensate DIXON for any related 
increases in the cost to provide Construction Phase services. 

  



Exhibit K, A, C-1, C-2 Owner: City of Kewanee Page 4 of 6 
Contract No: 13-37-04-02/IA2020TSW-2147 

Amendment No: 1 

A1.02 Post Construction Phase: 
A. Basic Services: 

1. One Year Warranty Observation - ROV and Exterior: 
a. Review all wet or dry interior surfaces for corrosion and/or damage, qualify and quantify 

damage for repairs.  All coating repairs needed are to be quantified by extrapolation of a 
measured area and compared with warranty requirements. 

b. Observe the exterior coating and quantify damages. 
c. Review all repairs completed during Construction Phase. 
d. Review all exterior appurtenances for damage due to corrosion or construction. 
e. Review exterior of the exposed foundations. 
f. Review all health aspects of the tank, including screening of the vent, overflow pipe, and 

other possible contamination sources. 
g. Prepare a report documenting all items found that meet or fail to meet warranty 

requirements and recommendations for repair.  The report will be letter format. 
2. Warranty Failure - When observation has determined that warranty requirements were not 

met then DIXON will: 
a. Together with Owner, visit the Project to observe any apparent defects in the Work if 

requested, make recommendations as to replacement or correction of defective Work, or 
the need to repair any damage to the Site or adjacent areas, and assist Owner in 
consultations and discussions with Contractor concerning correction of any such 
defective Work and any needed repairs. 

b. If warranty repair is required provide letter as notice of rejection to Owner so that they 
may forward to Bonding Company. Notice of rejection may be all inclusive or limited to 
specific area. 

c. Provide RPR services during any required correction of any work not meeting 
requirements of one-year warranty observation. 

d. Extend contract an additional year and repeat warranty services if repairs warrant a 
second repair period. 

3. The Post-Construction Phase services may commence during the Construction Phase and, if 
not otherwise modified in this EXHIBIT A, will terminate thirteen months after the 
commencement of the Construction Contract’s correction period. 

B. Post Construction Phase – RPR Services 
1. Detailed above if repairs are needed. 

C. Post Construction Phase - Owner’s Responsibilities: 
1. Warranty Observation - ROV Observation: 

a. Fill the tank to overflow or higher capacity and isolate it from the system during the ROV 
observation, or as a minimum, maintain positive flow (No water withdrawal from tank). 

b. Perform chlorine residual and bacteriological testing after completion of observation. 
 

A2.01 ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
A. Any service not listed or referenced above in Part 1 will be considered an Additional Service. 

1. All additional requested services and associated fees shall be documented by an Exhibit 
K, Contract Amendment signed by both parties. 

  



Exhibit K, A, C-1, C-2 Owner: City of Kewanee Page 5 of 6 
Contract No: 13-37-04-02/IA2020TSW-2147 

Amendment No: 1 

EXHIBIT C ATTACHMENT C-1:  Agreement Between  
   Owner and DIXON 

SUMMARY OF DIXON’S COMPENSATION FEES SCHEDULE of VALUES 
 

1. The total compensation for services under this Agreement is the estimated total compensation 
amount of Forty-Seven Thousand, Three Hundred, Fifty Dollars, $47,350 and summarized as 
follows:  

 
Schedule of Values     
Description of Services  # of Units Unit Price Amount Basis of Compensation 
A1.01-Preconstruction Meeting   $1,500 Unit Price 
A1.01-Other Defined Basic 
Services: Project Administration 

  $2,000 Lump Sum 

A1.01-RPR Services Weld 1 $1,450 $1,450 Unit Price 
A1.01-RPR Critical Phase 
Coating 

27 $1,450 $39,150 Unit Price 

A1.02-Warranty Observation   $3,250 Unit Price 
Total   $47,350  

 
2. In the event of a conflict with the number in the Total and the written amount in 1 above or with 

the number on the Signature Page, the first governance shall be a review of math in this schedule 
of values. 

3. DIXON may alter the distribution of compensation consistent with services actually rendered 
between individual phases of Basic and RPR Service with unused fees calculated by any method.  
Reallocation of fees shall not result in a total fee in excess of the total compensation amount unless 
approved by the Owner. 

 

  



Exhibit K, A, C-1, C-2 Owner: City of Kewanee Page 6 of 6 
Contract No: 13-37-04-02/IA2020TSW-2147 

Amendment No: 1 

EXHIBIT C ATTACHMENT C-2:  Agreement Between  
Owner and DIXON 

REIMBURSABLE EXPENSE SCHEDULE 

 

Labor Class Per Hour Overtime Rate 

Principal $255.00  

Project Manager $153.00 $230.00 

Engineer  $158.00 $237.00 

CWI Welding RPR $137.00-$153.00 $206.00-$230.00 

DIXON Level 3 or NACE Certified Level 3 
RPR $107.00-$137.00 $161.00-$206.00 

DIXON Level 2 or NACE Level 2 RPR $97.00-$122.00 $146.00-$183.00 

DIXON Level 1 or NACE Level 1 RPR  $87.00-$97.00 $131.00-$146.00 

Contract Support Staff $112.00-$138.00 $168.00-$207.00 

   

Expenses Metropolitan Out-State 

Mileage $0.70/mile + tolls $0.60/mile 

Lodging $155.00 per diem $145.00 per diem 

Meals $47.00 per diem $40.00 per diem 

FEES EFFECTIVE THROUGH: December 31, 2020 

Revised: 8/6/2019 

 



DIXON ENGINEERING, INC.  

Observation Report #12 (SW Irvinedale) 
Page 1 of 7 

 
  REPORT #: 12  DATE: 3/31/2020 

 TANK TYPE: 2,500,000 Gallon Hydropillar  CONTRACTOR: Fedewa Inc. 
 LOCATION: SW Irvinedale Dr. & SW 18th St.  FOREMAN: Dave Baker 

 CITY/STATE:   Ankeny, Iowa  OWNER INSPECTOR: Don Clark, PE 
 CLIENT: City of Ankeny, Iowa     PROJECT MANAGER: Tim Wilson 

 CONTRACT: Wet Interior Spot Repaint, Dry Interior  
Spot Repaint, Misc. Repairs 

 PROJECT ENGINEER: Dixon Engineering, Inc. 
   

DIXON RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE (RPR): Doctor Evans  
 
TIME OF OBSERVATION: 9:00 am WEATHER: Sunny, 41ºF  WIND DIRECTION: NE 6 mph  
 

PURPOSE: Perform the following to determine compliance with specified requirements: 
1. To observe the topcoat dry film thickness readings in the wet interior. 
2. To observe the prime coat dry film thickness readings in the dry interior. 
3. To perform a low voltage holiday test in the wet interior. 
4. To observe the spot power tool cleaning in the dry interior. 
 

LOCATIONS OF SURFACES OBSERVED: 
1. Wet interior roof, sidewall, and bowl 
2. Dry interior access tube and bowl 

 
STATUS: 
On Site: 
Foreman: Yes Number of crew members:  3  Subcontractor on site: N/A 
 
Arrival Notes: 
1. Upon arrival, Dixon Engineering RPR made note that the contractor was on site. 

2. Dixon RPR spoke to the contractor’s foreman about today’s plan, the foreman plans on finishing up the power tool 
cleaning in the dry interior and applying the prime coat. 

3. The contractor plans on de-rigging the wet interior. 
 
Percent of Work Completed:  
Wet Interior: ABC 100%; Prime Coat 100%: Intermediate Coat 100%; Stripe Coat 100%, Topcoat 100% 
Dry Interior: SPTC 100%; Prime Coat 100% 
Other: Metal Repairs 100% 
 
Misc. Items to be Completed:  N/A 

 
EQUIPMENT: 
On Site: (1) Dumpster, (2) Equipment trailers, (2) Blast pots, (2) Paint pumps, (2) Pallets of Abrasive, (1) Port-o-let, (1) 
Atlas air compressor 
 
Not on Site as Required:  N/A 
 
FORECAST: 
Daytime: Sunny, High around 60°F, East winds near 10 mph 
Overnight: Partly Cloudy, Low in the upper 30’s 
 

SW Irvinedale Dr. & SW 18th St.
Fedewa Inc. 
Dave Baker 
Don Clark, PE Ankeny, Iowa 

City of Ankeny, Iowa 

 (SW Irvinedale)



DIXON ENGINEERING, INC.  

Observation Report #12 (SW Irvinedale) 
Page 2 of 7 

 
AMBIENT READINGS: 
Location of Reading Time Weather Wind DB °F WB °F RH % ST °F DP °F ST-DP °F Favorable? 
Dry Interior  12:00pm Sunny NE 55 46 49 64 36 +28 Yes 
Exterior Shade  2:00pm Sunny NE 52 45 57 55 37 +18 Yes 
Legend: DB=Dry Bulb; WB=Wet Bulb; ST=Surface Temperature; DP=Dew Point 
 
1. Ambient readings were taken and recorded by Dixon Engineering RPR.  

2. Based on 12:00 P.M. Dry Interior ambient reading recorded, conditions were favorable for abrasive blast 
cleaning and coating application.  Contractor has plans of performing work. 

OBSERVATIONS: 
Cleaning: 
1. Observed spot power tool cleaning of the dry interior access tube and bowl.  All surfaces were cleaned of visible 

dust/oils /grease prior to the observation. No areas of deficiencies noted dry interior; the contractor’s foreman was 
informed of the observation results.  All areas observed met SSPC-SP 11 requirements.  An additional observation is 
not required. Surfaces are ready for coating application. 

 
Coating: 
Manufacturer: Tnemec  Type: N140 Color: Beige Primer 

Batch Numbers: Part A: BA201910079 Part C: N/A 

 Part B: BA2020010138 Thinner: N/A 

Method of Mixing: Power Drill  Induction Time: N/A Method of Application: Roller 

Area Coated: Dry Interior Access Tube and Bowl (Prime coat) 

1. The Dixon RPR observed the mixing of coating. Part A and Part B were thoroughly mixed before Part A and Part B 
were mixed together. The Dixon RPR noted that Part A and Part B were thoroughly mixed together. All mixing 
meets the Tnemec Recommendations. 

Location of Applied Coating Coat Cure 
Time 

Low DFT 
(mils) 

High DFT 
(mils) 

Avg. DFT 
(mils) 

# of 
Readings 

Required 
DFT (mils) Comments 

Wet Interior Roof Topcoat N/A 8.9 18.2 13.5 20 12.0-18.0 Met 
Requirements 

Wet Interior Sidewall Topcoat N/A 10.0 27.1 16.8 20 12.0-18.0 Met 
Requirements  

Wet Interior Bowl Topcoat N/A 9.3 20.9 13.0 20 12.0-18.0 Met 
Requirements  

Dry Interior Access Tube Prime N/A 2.8 15.3 5.4 20 4.0-6.0 Met 
Requirements 

Dry Interior Bowl Prime N/A 1.5 13.3 6.6 20 4.0-6.0 Met 
Requirements 

 
1. DFT readings for the wet interior were taken with Elektro Physik Type 2 gauge.  Serial #130574. Gauge calibration 

verified on plastic shims.  Shim = 11.0.  Spot readings = 11.3. 

2. Observed topcoat coat application to the wet interior roof for thickness. 20 Different spot readings were taken.  The 
average reading was 13.5 mils.  Thickness readings met specified requirement of 12.0 – 18.0 mils. 

3. Observed topcoat coat application to the wet interior sidewall for thickness. 20 Different spot readings were taken.  
The average reading was 16.8 mils.  Thickness readings met specified requirement of 12.0 – 18.0 mils. 

 (SW Irvinedale)



DIXON ENGINEERING, INC.  

Observation Report #12 (SW Irvinedale) 
Page 3 of 7 

4. Observed topcoat coat application to the wet interior bowl for thickness. 20 Different spot readings were taken.  The 
average reading was 13.0 mils.  Thickness readings met specified requirement of 12.0 – 18.0 mils. 

5. Observed topcoat coat of the wet interior for coverage.  Surfaces were found to be free of all defects and 
contaminates.  

6. DFT readings for the dry interior were taken with Elektro Physik Type 2 gauge.  Serial #130574. Gauge calibration 
verified on plastic shims.  Shim = 2.44.  Spot readings = 2.46. 

7. Observed prime coat application to the dry interior access tube for thickness. 20 Different spot readings were taken.  
The average reading was 5.4 mils.  Thickness readings met specified requirement of 4.0 – 6.0 mils. 

8. Observed prime coat application to the dry interior bowl for thickness. 20 Different spot readings were taken.  The 
average reading was 6.6 mils.  Thickness readings met specified requirement of 4.0 – 6.0 mils. 

9. Observed prime coat of the dry interior for coverage.  Surfaces were found to be free of all defects and contaminates. 

 
Additional: 
1. Low Voltage -Dixon RPR performed a low voltage holiday test on the wet interior.  The test was performed with a 

Tinker & Razor, Low Voltage, M/1, and serial #27378.  RPR verified the ground wire was attached to a bare metal 
section of the structure; the buzzer was tested to ensure it functioned properly, the sponge was wetted with tap 
water, the circuit periodically tested and the testing rate was maintained at approximately 1ft/sec throughout the 
observation.  The contractor’s foreman visually verified the observation results.  The results of the testing are as 
follows: the surface is holiday free and no additional testing is required. The testing was completed per NACE 
SP0188 Discontinuity (Holiday) Testing of New Protective Coatings on Conductive Substrates.   
 

2. The Dixon RPR observed the contractor apply prime coat to the dry interior bowl prior to the contractor moving 
the rigging. All areas observed have met specification requirements. 

 
SUMMARY: 
1. Next observation to be determined to observe the final observation and chlorination. 

 

(SW Irvinedale)



DIXON ENGINEERING, INC.  

Observation Report #12 (SW Irvinedale) 
Page 4 of 7 

 
 

Spot power tool cleaning to the dry interior bowl. 
 

 

 
 

Spot power tool cleaning to the dry interior access tube. 
 

 (SW Irvinedale)



DIXON ENGINEERING, INC.  

Observation Report #12 (SW Irvinedale) 
Page 5 of 7 

 

 
 

Spot power tool cleaning to the dry interior access tube.  

Topcoat applied to the wet interior sidewall.  

(SW Irvinedale)



DIXON ENGINEERING, INC.  

Observation Report #12 (SW Irvinedale) 
Page 6 of 7 

 
 

 

Topcoat applied to the wet interior bowl.  

Topcoat applied to the wet interior roof.  

 (SW Irvinedale)



DIXON ENGINEERING, INC.  

Observation Report #12 (SW Irvinedale) 
Page 7 of 7 

 
Prime coat applied to the dry interior bowl. 

 

 (SW Irvinedale)











































RESOLUTION NO. 5211 
 
A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT A PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT WITH DIXON ENGINEERING TO PROVIDE CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION SERVICES 
AND DECLARING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE IMMEDIATELY. 
 
WHEREAS,  The South Water Tower is scheduled to be re-coated in 2020; and, 

WHEREAS,  Storage tank re-coating is specialized work that is expensive to perform and can be difficult to 
perform properly; and, 

WHEREAS, There are consulting engineering firms that specialize in coating steel tanks; and, 

WHEREAS, Staff finds it prudent to engage such a consultant to ensure the South Water Tower work is 
performed properly; and, 

WHEREAS, Staff previously followed a Qualifications-Based Selection (QBS) process to select Dixon 
Engineering to evaluate the existing condition of the tank and to assist in developing the 
technical specifications to govern the project; and, 

WHEREAS, Staff entered into a Professional Services Agreement with Dixon Engineering for $5,575.00 to 
provide said services; and, 

WHEREAS, Dixon Engineering proposes to amend the Agreement to provide construction engineering 
services at standard rates for the not-to-exceed price of $47,350.00; and, 

WHEREAS, $50,000.00 is included in the proposed FY2021 budget for construction engineering; and, 

WHEREAS, Staff finds Dixon Engineering to be competent, is satisfied with the level of service provided 
thus far, and recommends approval of the Amendment to the Agreement. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KEWANEE THAT: 

Section 1 The proposed Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement with Dixon Engineering is 
hereby accepted. 

 

Section 2 The $47,530.00 Amendment increases the value of the Professional Services Agreement with 
Dixon Engineering from $5,575 to a not-to-exceed value of  $52,925. 

 

Section 2 The Mayor, City Clerk, City Manager, and City Engineer are hereby authorized to execute the 
Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement; provided, however, that said contract 
documents are in substantially similar form and content to that attached hereto and incorporated 
herein. 

 

Section 3 This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and approval as 
provided by law.   

 

 

 

 

 



   Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 27th day of April 2020. 
ATTEST: 
 

  

   
   
Rabecka Jones, City Clerk  Gary Moore, Mayor 

 
 
 RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 

Mayor Gary Moore     
Council Member Mike Komnick     

Council Member Steve Faber     
Council Member Chris Colomer     

Council Member Michael Yaklich     



CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE April 27, 2020 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Resolution #5212 

AGENDA TITLE Approval of a Resolution accepting the lowest 
responsive and responsible bid from Performance 
Pipelining, Inc. for Project #20-02, 2020 Cured In Place 
Pipe (CIPP) Sewer Program, in the amount of 
$500,161.40. 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Public Works 

PRESENTER Scott Hinton, City Engineer 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as recommended: $500,161.40. 

Budget Line Item: 33-49-850

Balance Available $610,000 in the proposed 
FY2021 budget which 
includes $360,000 
budgeted, but unspent, 
funds from FY2020. 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[  ] Yes [X] No

PURPOSE Accepting the bid is necessary to proceed with the 
contract documents for the 2020 CIPP Program. 

Item F



   

BACKGROUND Staff has identified several sanitary sewer mains and 
laterals that are structurally deficient and proposes to 
line the mains before they need to be replaced.  The 
proposed 2020 lining locations are on East Central 
Boulevard, East, Park, Payson, Willard, Beach, and 
Division Streets.  The Program includes the lining of 
3,577’ of 8”, 5,240’ of 10”, 1,116’ or 12”, and 97’ of 24” 
sanitary sewer.  It also includes the lining of the City’s 
portion of 65 sanitary sewer laterals.   
The project was advertised for bids on March 27, 2020 
and nine companies requested bid packages.  Bids 
were received and publicly read on April 21, 2020 with 
the following results:    

$500,161.40  Performance Pipelining 
$520,130.00  Hoerr 
$577,470.96  Insituform Technologies 
$604,473.30  Visu-Sewer 
$687,896.00  SAK Construction 

    

SPECIAL NOTES N/A 

ANALYSIS Much of the City’s sanitary sewer collection system is 
aging and nearing the end of its useful life.  Trenchless 
technologies allow gravity piping to be rehabilitated by 
placing a structural liner inside the deteriorating pipe.  
This process is performed from manhole to manhole 
without the need to remove pavement, excavate, or 
expose the pipe.  As such, the work is performed 
quicker and cheaper than installing new pipe and with 
much less inconvenience to the public. In most cases, 
CIPP has proven to be more efficient and cost effective 
than installing new gravity pipe.  The City has a history 
of successful installations and staff finds that CIPP 
allows the City to stretch our limited funding and get the 
most bang-for-the buck.     

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

This project was advertised on the City’s website and 
two times in the local newspaper. 

BOARD OR 
COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

N/A    



   

STAFF 
RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends accepting the bid of $500,161.40 
from Performance Pipelining, Inc. and proceeding with 
execution of the contract documents.   

PROCUREMENT POLICY 
VERIFICATION 

This project was competitively bid in accordance with 
the Illinois State Statutes which govern the procurement 
of publicly funded construction contracts. 

REFERENCE 
DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

Bid tabulation and contract attached. 

 



CITY OF KEWANEE

CITY HALL

401 EAST THIRD ST.

KEWANEE, IL. 61443
TABULATION OF BIDS

BIDDER NAME : 

DATE: 4/21/20 PROJECT: 2020 CIPP Sewer Program BIDDER ADDRESS : 

TIME: 11am OWNER:  City of Kewanee CITY/STATE/ZIP : 
WITNESS: PROJECT #20-02 BID GUARANTEE : 

ITEM 

NO ITEM UNIT QUANTITY

ESTIMATED    

UNIT PRICE

ESTIMATE         

TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL

1 Line Sanitary Sewer 8" LF 3577 24.69 107184.23 23.75 84958.50 22.80 81560.16 25.40 90860.88 26.50 94795.80 33.00 118047.60

2 Line Sanitary Sewer 10" LF 5240 28.97 129681.31 25.00 131010.00 24.00 125769.60 26.80 140442.72 28.25 148041.30 34.00 178173.60

3 Line Sanitary Sewer 12" LF 1116 40.56 45281.18 32.25 36003.90 31.60 35278.24 39.90 44544.36 35.50 39632.20 47.00 52470.80

4 Line Sanitary Sewer 24" LF 97 118.58 11502.26 157.00 15229.00 151.00 14647.00 244.00 23668.00 182.00 17654.00 207.00 20079.00

5 Lateral Reinstatement EA. 180 86.93 15647.40 78.00 14040.00 75.00 13500.00 100.00 18000.00 100.00 18000.00 100.00 18000.00

6 Lateral Lining EA. 65 3500.00 227500.00 3200.00 208000.00 3675.00 238875.00 3705.00 240825.00 3750.00 243750.00 4125.00 268125.00

7 Protruding Service Conections EA. 20 500.00 10000.00 260.00 5200.00 250.00 5000.00 130.00 2600.00 10.00 200.00 150.00 3000.00

8 Dye Testing of Service EA. 10 250.00 2500.00 416.00 4160.00 400.00 4000.00 518.00 5180.00 340.00 3400.00 600.00 6000.00

9 Traffic Control Complete LS 1 20000.00 20000.00 1560.00 1560.00 1500.00 1500.00 11350.00 11350.00 39000.00 39000.00 24000.00 24000.00

TOTAL ESTIMATE/ BID = 569,296.38 500,161.40 520,130.00 577,470.96 604,473.30 687,896.00

COMPARISON TO ESTIMATE -- -12.14% -8.64% 1.44% 6.18% 20.83%

SAK Construction, LLC

11351 W. 183rd Street

Orland Park, Illinois 60467

Insituform Technologies, USA Visu-Sewer

864 Hoff Road

O'Fallon, MO. 63366

Performance Pipelining, Inc. Hoerr Construction, Inc.

bid bond bid bond bid bond bid bond

1551 W. Norris Drive

Ottawa, Illinois 61350

P.O. Box 65

Goodfield, Illinois 61742

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE

bid bond

W230 N4855 Betker Road

Pewaukee, WI. 53072



CITY OF KEWANEE 
CONTRACT 

 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and concluded this _  day of   , A.D., 

2020, between Performance Pipelining, Inc. of 1661 W Norris Drive, Ottawa, IL 61350 

hereinafter referred to as the “CONTRACTOR,” and the CITY OF KEWANEE, ILLINOIS, 

hereinafter referred to as the “CITY;” 

WITNESSETH, that the CONTRACTOR for and in consideration of the payments to be made 

to it by the CITY in the amount of FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND ONE HUNDRED SIXTY-ONE 

DOLLARS AND SIXTY-ONE CENTS (500,161.40) hereby covenants and agrees, to and with the 

CITY, that it shall and will in good and workmanlike manner, furnish all the labor and material for 

PROJECT #20-02, 2020 CIPP SEWER PROGRAM as per the CONTRACTOR’S Proposal dated 

4/21/20. 

 
Such work to be under the direction and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer, and in 

accordance with the contractor’s Proposal, which is part of this contract.  The work to be commenced 

not later than 10 days after the execution of this contract unless mutually agreed upon by the CITY and 

CONTRACTOR; to progress regularly and uninterruptedly after it shall have been begun excepting as 

shall otherwise be ordered by the City Council of the City of Kewanee (hereinafter referred to as the 

“City Council”), or its authorized representative, and shall be finished and fully completed within forty-

five (45) calendar days; PROVIDED, however that if the time of the performance of the contract herein 

be for any reason either expressly or by implication extended, such extension shall not affect the 

validity of this contract. 

The Contractor further agrees that the unit prices submitted are for the purpose of obtaining a 

gross sum, and for use in computing the value of extras and deductions; that if there is a discrepancy 

between the gross sum bid and that resulting from the summation of the quantities multiplied by their 



2  

respective unit prices, the latter shall apply.  When this contract shall be wholly carried out and 

completed on the part of the Contractor, and when said work has been accepted by the City, a sum of 

money shall be computed by multiplying the following unit prices by the quantity of items 

completed, it being understood that the following total sum of money listed is for the purpose of 

determining the amount of the performance, labor, material and maintenance bond only.  Such 

payment shall be made as provided for in the said specifications. 

This Contract calls for the construction of a “public work” within the meaning of the Illinois 

Prevailing Wage Act, 820 ILCS 130/.01 et seq. (“the Act”).  The Act requires contractors, 

subcontractors, and truckers to pay laborers, workers, and mechanics performing services on public 

works projects not less than the “prevailing rate of wages” (hourly cash wages plus fringe benefits) 

in the county where the work is performed.  The prevailing wage rates for projects for the City of 

Kewanee are updated regularly by the Illinois Department of Labor and may be found at: 

https://www.illinois.gov/idol/Laws-Rules/CONMED/Documents/2016%20Rates/Rock%20Island.pdf 

 
All contractors, subcontractors, and truckers rendering services under this contract must 

comply with all requirements of the Act, including but not limited to, all wage, notice and record 

keeping duties.  All contractors, subcontractors, and truckers shall keep an accurate record showing 

the names and occupations of all laborers, workers, and mechanics employed by them on this 

contract, and also showing the actual hourly wages paid to each of such persons and shall preserve 

their weekly payroll records for a period of three (3) years from the date of completion of the contract.  

Weekly certified payrolls shall be sent to the City Engineer. 

It is further provided that the CONTRACTOR shall upon the sealing of this contract, file 

with the CITY a Certificate of Insurance meeting the requirements of the City of  Kewanee Special 

Provision for Insurance Requirements. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Parties have executed these presents on the date above 

mentioned. 

https://www.illinois.gov/idol/Laws-Rules/CONMED/Documents/2016%20Rates/Rock%20Island.pdf


3  

CONTRACTOR: CITY: 
 

CITY OF KEWANEE, ILLINOIS 

 

 
 
By: By: 

Attest: 

 

 

Mayor 

 
 
 
City Clerk 

 
 
 

 



















RESOLUTION NO. 5212 
 
A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT THE BID FROM PERFORMANCE PIPLINING, INC. FOR PROJECT #20-
02, 2020 CURED IN PLACE PIPE (CIPP) SEWER PROGRAM, IN THE AMOUNT OF $500,161.40 AND 
DECLARING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE IMMEDIATELY. 
 
WHEREAS,  The City Council recognizes that aging sanitary sewers are deteriorating and nearing the end of 

their useful lives; and, 

WHEREAS, Lining the sewers using the CIPP method of trenchless technology is more cost efficient with 
less public inconvenience than installing new sewers; and, 

WHEREAS,  Bids were solicited to replace several 8”, 10”, 12”, and 24” sewers and 65 laterals within the 
right-of-way and those bids received on time were opened and publicly read on April 21, 2020; 
and, 

WHEREAS, Performance Pipelining, Inc. of 1551 W Norris Drive, Ottawa, IL 61350 submitted the lowest 
responsive and responsible bid of $500,161.40; and, 

WHEREAS, $610,000.00 is allocated for this work in the proposed FY2021 budget; and, 

WHEREAS, Staff recommends the City of Kewanee enter into a contract with Performance Pipelining, Inc. 
for the $500,161.40. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KEWANEE THAT: 

Section 1 The bid of Performance Pipelining, Inc. is hereby accepted. 
 
Section 2 The Mayor, City Clerk, City Manager, and City Engineer are hereby authorized to execute and 

attest to all necessary contract documents with Performance Pipelining, Inc. for Project #20-02, 
2020 CIPP Sewer Program, in the amount of $500,161.40; provided, however, that said contract 
documents are in substantially similar form and content to that attached hereto and incorporated 
herein. 

 
Section 3 This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and approval as 

provided by law.   
 
 
 

   Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 27th day of April 2020. 
ATTEST: 
 

  

   
   
Rabecka Jones, City Clerk  Gary Moore, Mayor 

 
 
 RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 

Mayor Gary Moore     
Council Member Mike Komnick     

Council Member Steve Faber     
Council Member Chris Colomer     

Council Member Michael Yaklich     





































RESOLUTION NO. 5213 
 
A RESOLUTION TO RATIFY AND AUTHORIZE THE EXPENDED FUNDS USED TO MAKE 
EMERGENCY REPAIRS TO THE 20” INFLUENT FORCE MAIN AT THE WASTEWATER TREATMENT 
PLANT AND DECLARING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE IMMEDIATELY. 
 
WHEREAS,  The City Council previously approved a contract with Quad City Directional Boring. Inc. and 

contracting with Dooley Brothers Plumbing & Heating, Inc. and Ratliff Brothers & Co., Inc. on a 
cost plus basis to make emergency repairs to 20” ductile iron Influent Force Main piping at the 
wastewater treatment plant; and, 

WHEREAS,  The work is complete and all contractor invoices have been submitted; and, 

WHEREAS, The total cost of all work performed by Quad City Directional Boring, Inc. is $90,618.00; and, 

WHEREAS, The total cost of all work performed by Dooley Brothers Plumbing & Heating, Inc. is 
$14,145.00; and, 

WHEREAS, The total cost of all work performed by Ratliff Brothers & Co., Inc is $43,511.75; and, 

WHEREAS,  The total cost of all work performed by BEA Britton Electronics & Automation, Inc. is 
$1,905.46; and, 

WHEREAS, The total cost of all pipe fittings purchased direct by the City from Core & Main is $21,365.62; 
and, 

WHEREAS,  An additional $1,046.47 was spent on miscellaneous small supplies; and, 

WHEREAS, The total aggregate cost of all work performed and materials purchased is $172,592.30; and, 

WHEREAS,  This cost is an unbudgeted expense to the FY2020 budget although the Sanitary Sewer 
Enterprise Fund has sufficient Reserves to cover all costs. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KEWANEE THAT: 

Section 1 All funds expended to Quad City Directional Boring, Inc., Dooley Brothers Plumbing & 
Heating, Inc., Ratliff Brothers & Co, Inc., BEA Britton Electronics & Automation, Inc., Core & 
Main, and other suppliers to isolate the 20” Influent Force Main line, attempt to patch the 
existing pipe, then bore in a new 20” HDPE pipe are hereby ratified. 

 
Section 2 This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and approval as 

provided by law.   

 

   Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 27th day of April 2020. 
ATTEST:   
   
   
Rabecka Jones, City Clerk  Gary Moore, Mayor 

 
 
 RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 

Mayor Gary Moore     
Council Member Mike Komnick     

Council Member Steve Faber     
Council Member Chris Colomer     

Council Member Michael Yaklich     



  Item G  

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE April 27, 2020 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Resolution #5214 

AGENDA TITLE Consideration of a Resolution approving the use of 
incentives under the small business interest payment 
program by Midwest Trailer Manufacturing 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Administration 

PRESENTER Gary Bradley, City Manager 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

Not to exceed $40,000 

Budget Line Item: 02-61-930.2 

Balance Available TBD 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[X] Yes [ ] No 

PURPOSE Authorizes the use of the small business interest 
payment program by MTM 

BACKGROUND The City provided a low interest loan to MTM in July 
2016 from the Revolving Loan Program.  Since that 
time, the company has restructured its ownership, 
narrowed its product line, reduced its overhead, and 
borrowed additional funds to inject capital into its 
operations.  They have continued to grow at a 
manageable pace and have developed a presence in 
the marketplace.     

SPECIAL NOTES N/A 



  Item G  

ANALYSIS The loan taken out in 2016 was taken with the idea 
that they would be able to qualify for this program.  
They sought funding through this program in 2017 
and were awarded funding.  They failed to request 
funding through the program the following year, then 
the council failed to appropriate funding because 
there were no program participants.  If the program 
continues to be unfunded because there are no 
applicants and no one applies because there is no 
funding, we will have created a completely useless 
program.    

Making this small commitment helps to ensure the 
viability of the previous loan and provides a small 
boost to a growing company.  

The Goals included in their narrative would serve as 
good milestones to include for funding under the 
program.   

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

N/A 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION N/A 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

Application, bank letter 

 





 
 

SMALL BUSINESS INTEREST PAYMENT PROGRAM 
 

APPLICATION FOR INTEREST PAYMENTS TO  
PRIVATE ELIGIBLE BUSINESS AND DEVELOPMENT PROJECT COSTS 

 
Pursuant to the Kewanee Small Business Interest Payment Program guidelines existing businesses, located 
within the City of Kewanee, with a proper business license (if applicable), insurance and required permits per 
local, state and federal requirements, or corporations in good standing looking to locate or relocate in 
Kewanee can apply for this program. If an applicant is a new start-up business and does not have proper 
license or insurance, then these items can be made a condition of approval.  The business can be a tenant 
leasing space or an owner of property where the business is located.  The existing business must create or 
retain three (3) or more permanent full time equivalent (FTE) jobs. 
 
Private developers seeing reimbursement of interest payments for development project costs are required by 
the municipality to complete this application allowing the municipality to adequately determine the 

 
 
Instructions: Complete each section and return via fax (309) 856-6001 or U. S. Mail or in person to: 
City of Kewanee, 401 E. Third Street, Kewanee, IL 61443 
PART 1: DEVELOPER INFORMATION 
 
Developer Legal/Business Name: Midwest Trailer Manufacturing, LLC  Date: 04/23/2020 
 
Business type:  Sole Proprietorship    Partnership   Corporation (State of Charter:____________) 
 
                          X Other (please describe): Illinois LLC 
 

 
 Name Ben Endress  Title President/CEO 
                         Steve Endress Title:CFO/COO 
 
 Address 2000 Kentville Rd 
 City Kewanee  State Illinois Zip Code 61443 
 
 Daytime Phone 309-937-1493  Mobile 309-525-2030, Steve:  309-238-0101 
 Fax ________________________________ Email ben@mtmbuilt.com, steve@mtmbuilt.com 
PART 2: PROJECT INFORMATION 
 
Project Name Steel Trailer Line Operating Costs 
 
Anticipated Start Date 4/24/2020  Anticipated Completion Date 5/24/2021 
 
Project Description Operating costs,including purchase of raw materials, payroll costs, and overhead costs. 
 
Project is classified as:  X Industrial  Commercial   
 
Project Street Address 2000 Kentville Rd, Kewanee, IL 61443 



 
FOR ENTIRE PROJECT: 
 
Total Projected Investment $6,000,000.00 - (annual operating costs for existing steel trailer company) 
 
Total Number of Jobs Created: Retain 53 employees   Number of Jobs FTE: Retain 53 employees 
 
Current annual retail sales (if applicable  commercial projects only) . . . . . .  $ 6,000,000 
 
Projected (new) annual retail sales generated by this project . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 8,000,000 
 
PART 3: SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 
 
Source of Funds:      
 

1. Loan #21026- ($1,000,000 operating loan)  We are requesting $40,000 in interest reimbursement. 
 

2. Owner Investments and Other local and non-local loans  
 

3. ___________________________________________ 
 
Use of Funds: 
 

1. General Operating Purposes 
 

2. ___________________________________________ 
 

3. ___________________________________________ 
 
 
 

PART 4: BANKING INFORMATION 
 
Total Loan amount: $1,000,000.00   Interest Rate: 4 % 
 
Financial Institution: State Bank of Toulon 
 
Contact at Financial Institution: Mark Rewerts  Phone No. 309-852-3366 
 
 
 
________________________________,     CFO/COO   04/24/2020 
Private Developer   Title    Date 
Office Use Only: 
  Date received: ___________________  By __________________________ 













RESOLUTION NO. 5214 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE USE OF INCENTIVES UNDER THE SMALL 

BUSINESS INTEREST PAYMENT PROGRAM BY MIDWEST TRAILER 

MANUFACTURING AND DECLARING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BE IN FULL 

FORCE IMMEDIATELY. 

 

WHEREAS, The City Council approved Community and Economic Development 

Incentives for use in the City of Kewanee in September 2016; and,  

WHEREAS, Those incentives included the Small Business Interest Payment Program 

intended to assist existing legal businesses within the City of Kewanee 

with obtaining financing for certain eligible costs, including operating 

capital; and, 

WHEREAS, Midwest Trailer Manufacturing expressed interest in the program in 

October 2016, at which time the program had not been funded and 

participated in the program in 2017; and, 

WHEREAS,  Midwest Trailer Manufacturing received a low interest loan from the City 

of Kewanee in July 2016 through the City’s Revolving Loan Program; 

and, 

WHEREAS, The City Council finds it in the best interest of the community to continue 

to support Midwest Trailer Manufacturing in its early stages to ensure the 

viability of the previous loan and to give a small boost to the company in 

its work to create and retain good jobs in the community. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

KEWANEE IN COUNCIL ASSEMBLED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1 The City Council of the City of Kewanee accepts the recommendation of 

staff to authorize the use of the Small Business Interest Payment 

Program by Midwest Trailer Manufacturing in conjunction with a loan 

from State Bank of Toulon.    

Section 2 The City Council finds it is in the best interests of the City of Kewanee 

and would promote industrial development; protect current levels of 

employment, and create new job opportunities in the City of Kewanee.  

Therefore, the City Council authorizes the use of the Small Business 

Interest Payment Program by Midwest Trailer Manufacturing for a loan 

not to exceed $1.1 with a three year maturity, such maturity date 

occurring on or before March 2, 2021. 

 



Section 3 The Mayor, City Attorney, City Manager, and City Clerk are hereby 

authorized and directed to execute any and all documents necessary to 

bind the City and to make said authorization to Midwest Trailer 

Manufacturing, as approved by the City Attorney.  

Section 4 Said authorization, is expressly conditioned upon Midwest Trailer 

Manufacturing complying with: 

A. All terms and conditions of said Small Business Interest Payment 

program and said Midwest Trailer Manufacturing providing the City 

with adequate written documentation of compliance with said terms 

and conditions, including, but not limited to, the specific retention of 

FTE 53 jobs, and sales/production of no less than $7.5 million per 

year. 

B. Funds received shall be used exclusively for the payment or 

reimbursement of interest on the loan stated in the application filed 

by Midwest Trailer Manufacturing and above referenced in this 

resolution. 
 

Section 5 This resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 

passage and approval as provided by law. 
 

 

Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 27th day of April 2020. 
 

    

ATTEST: 
 

  

   
   

Rabecka Jones, City Clerk  Gary Moore, Mayor 
 

 

RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 

Mayor Gary Moore     

Council Member Mike Komnick     

Council Member Steve Faber     

Council Member Chris Colomer     

Council Member Michael Yaklich     



RESOLUTION NO. 5215 
 
A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING GUIDELINES FOR THE USE OF INCENTIVES FOR A 
SHORT TERM ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM INTENDED TO HELP SMALL 
BUSINESSES RECOVER FROM THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC AND ITS NEGATIVE 
IMPACTS ON THE LOCAL ECONOMY AND DECLARING THAT THIS RESOLUTION 
SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE IMMEDIATELY. 

WHEREAS,  The City has made it a priority to develop and implement Economic Development 
plans, policies, and programs to strengthen the local economic climate, diversify 
the tax base, and enhance the viability and sustainability of the community’s and 
commercial areas; and  

WHEREAS, the City’s economic climate has been significantly negatively impacted by the 
COVID-19 Pandemic and actions taken to slow down the spread of the virus, 
including but not limited to the complete or partial shutdown of certain business 
activities;  

WHEREAS,  the City has a fund balance in its revolving loan fund program and other economic 
development funds that can greatly assist small businesses in their efforts to 
survive the current economic climate and remain vital enterprises; and  

WHEREAS,  it is important for the City to have a streamlined, fast, and efficient program that is 
responsive to business needs and can quickly come to the aid of the business 
community; and   

WHEREAS,  having clearly defined guidelines for the use of incentive programs helps to 
provide potential beneficiaries with an understanding of what their eligibility, the 
application and approval processes, the potential uses for such funds,  reporting 
requirements, and other pertinent information about the program.   

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE KEWANEE CITY COUNCIL, IN 
COUNCIL ASSEMBLED, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1 The attached guidelines for the Small Business Loan Program are hereby adopted.   
 
Section 2 This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and 

approval as provided by law.   
 
 
 

Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 27th day of April 2020. 

 
ATTEST: 
 

  

   
   
Rabecka Jones, City Clerk  Gary Moore, Mayor 

 



 

RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 
Mayor Gary Moore     

Council Member Mike Komnick     
Council Member Steve Faber     

Council Member Chris Colomer     
Council Member Michael Yaklich     



Loan Programs  
 

   
 

SMALL BUSINESS LOAN PROGRAM 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of the Small Business Loan 
Program is to assist small businesses in 
Kewanee affected by the COVID-19 Pandemic 
to help ensure their survival and the retention of 
jobs within the community.  Loans under the 
program will be small (under $20,000) short-
term loans (three years or less) with a low-
interest rate (2,5%) , extended to self-employed 
individuals or small businesses with only a few 
employees..   
 
AUTHORIZATION 
The City of Kewanee is the administrator of this 
program. Budgetary approval for the program 
rests with the authority of the City Council, 
while authorization for program implementation 
is the responsibility of the City Manager and 
assigned staff.     
 
ELIGIBLE AREAS 
Financing under this program is available to all 
eligible businesses located within the city limits 
of the City of Kewanee.  
 
ELIGIBLE APPLICANTS 
Applicants for the program must be existing 
legal businesses in good standing with the State 
of Illinois, located within the City of Kewanee, 
with a proper local business license (if 
applicable), insurance, and required permits per 
local, state and federal requirements.  The 
business can be a tenant leasing space or an 
owner of property where the business is located.  
 
PROGRAM BENEFITS/ELIGIBLE USES 
Eligible use of program funds include but are 
not limited to:  

• Payroll 
• Working capital 
• Inventory or supplies 

 
 
 

FUNDING INFORMATION 
The program will operate from May 1, 2020 
through June 30, 2020, with applications 
accepted on a continual basis and funded on a 
first come, first served basis until budgeted 
resources are exhausted. The minimum loan 
under this program is $2,500 and the maximum 
loan amount is $20,000.      
 
APPLICATION/APPROVAL 
PROCEDURE 
Applications are available online through the 
City’s website.  The City will evaluate 
applications based on the information submitted 
and the project’s conformance with adopted 
goals and desired outcomes of the City.   
 
A completed application form and required 
submittals shall be submitted to the City, 
including a detailed description of the intended 
use of funds and collateral to be pledged as 
security for the note, if applicable.   
 
Approval of applications, though dependent 
upon available funding provided by the City 
from multiple sources, will be provided by the 
City Council and requires no action from any 
other body in order to streamline the approval 
process. 
 
Loans under the program are for a period not to 
exceed 36 months.  Terms and conditions of 
each loan will vary based on circumstances. 
 
 
CONTACT 
City of Kewanee 
Gary Bradley, City Manager 
401 E. Third Street,  
Kewanee, IL 61443 
Phone: (309)853-4200 
Email: gbradley@Cityofkewanee.net 
Website:  www.Cityofkewanee.com 

mailto:gbradley@coffeyville.com


Month 
Starting 

Balance ($) 
Payment 
Made ($) 

Interest 
Paid ($) 

Principal 
Paid ($) 

Ending 
Balance ($) 

1 20000.00 41.67 41.67 0 20000.00 

2 20000.00 41.67 41.67 0 20000.00 

3 20000.00 41.67 41.67 0 20000.00 

4 20000.00 41.67 41.67 0 20000.00 

5 20000.00 41.67 41.67 0 20000.00 

6 20000.00 41.67 41.67 0 20000.00 

7 20000.00 688.41 41.67 646.74 19353.26 

8 19353.26 688.41 40.32 648.09 18705.16 

9 18705.16 688.41 38.97 649.44 18055.72 

10 18055.72 688.41 37.62 650.79 17404.93 

11 17404.93 688.41 36.26 652.15 16752.78 

12 16752.78 688.41 34.90 653.51 16099.27 

13 16099.27 688.41 33.54 654.87 15444.40 

14 15444.40 688.41 32.18 656.24 14788.16 



15 14788.16 688.41 30.81 657.60 14130.56 

16 14130.56 688.41 29.44 658.97 13471.59 

17 13471.59 688.41 28.07 660.35 12811.24 

18 12811.24 688.41 26.69 661.72 12149.52 

19 12149.52 688.41 25.31 663.10 11486.42 

20 11486.42 688.41 23.93 664.48 10821.94 

21 10821.94 688.41 22.55 665.87 10156.07 

22 10156.07 688.41 21.16 667.25 9488.82 

23 9488.82 688.41 19.77 668.64 8820.18 

24 8820.18 688.41 18.38 670.04 8150.14 

25 8150.14 688.41 16.98 671.43 7478.71 

26 7478.71 688.41 15.58 672.83 6805.88 

27 6805.88 688.41 14.18 674.23 6131.65 

28 6131.65 688.41 12.77 675.64 5456.01 

29 5456.01 688.41 11.37 677.04 4778.97 

30 4778.97 688.41 9.96 678.45 4100.51 



31 4100.51 688.41 8.54 679.87 3420.65 

32 3420.65 688.41 7.13 681.28 2739.36 

33 2739.36 688.41 5.71 682.70 2056.66 

34 2056.66 688.41 4.28 684.13 1372.53 

35 1372.53 688.41 2.86 685.55 686.98 

36 686.98 688.41 1.43 686.98 0.00 
 

  



 

1 20000.00 688.41 41.67 646.74 19353.26 

2 19353.26 688.41 40.32 648.09 18705.16 

3 18705.16 688.41 38.97 649.44 18055.72 

4 18055.72 688.41 37.62 650.79 17404.93 

5 17404.93 688.41 36.26 652.15 16752.78 

6 16752.78 688.41 34.90 653.51 16099.27 

7 16099.27 688.41 33.54 654.87 15444.40 

8 15444.40 688.41 32.18 656.24 14788.16 

9 14788.16 688.41 30.81 657.60 14130.56 

10 14130.56 688.41 29.44 658.97 13471.59 

11 13471.59 688.41 28.07 660.35 12811.24 

12 12811.24 688.41 26.69 661.72 12149.52 

13 12149.52 688.41 25.31 663.10 11486.42 

14 11486.42 688.41 23.93 664.48 10821.94 

15 10821.94 688.41 22.55 665.87 10156.07 



16 10156.07 688.41 21.16 667.25 9488.82 

17 9488.82 688.41 19.77 668.64 8820.18 

18 8820.18 688.41 18.38 670.04 8150.14 

19 8150.14 688.41 16.98 671.43 7478.71 

20 7478.71 688.41 15.58 672.83 6805.88 

21 6805.88 688.41 14.18 674.23 6131.65 

22 6131.65 688.41 12.77 675.64 5456.01 

23 5456.01 688.41 11.37 677.04 4778.97 

24 4778.97 688.41 9.96 678.45 4100.51 

25 4100.51 688.41 8.54 679.87 3420.65 

26 3420.65 688.41 7.13 681.28 2739.36 

27 2739.36 688.41 5.71 682.70 2056.66 

28 2056.66 688.41 4.28 684.13 1372.53 

29 1372.53 688.41 2.86 685.55 686.98 

30 686.98 688.41 1.43 686.98 0.00 

CONSIDERING BUYING A NEW CAR? 



 
RESOLUTION NO. 5216 

A RESOLUTION TO AFFIRM THE MAYOR’S RECOMMENDATION FOR APPOINTMENTS TO VARIOUS 
COMMISSIONS AND BOARDS, AND DECLARING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE 
IMMEDIATELY. 

WHEREAS, The Mayor is responsible for the appointment of individuals to serve on various boards and 
commissions that serve the Council, and the community; and 

WHEREAS, The Mayor hereby recommends the following individuals for appointment to serve on a board 
or commission as delineated, and for a term as indicated. 

BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF KEWANEE: 

Section 1 The following citizens of the City of Kewanee are appointed to the following board or 
commission, and for the term, indicated: 

Section 2 This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and approval as 
provided by law. 

   Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 27th day of April 2020. 

ATTEST:   

   

   

Rabecka Jones, City Clerk  Gary Moore, Mayor 

 

 

 

Board Expires City Code 
Sec. 

Name Address 

Board of Zoning 
Appeals 

April 30, 2025 

 

Sec. 33.061 Jim Ensley 

 

1218 W. Prospect Street 

RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 

Mayor Gary Moore     

Council Member Mike Komnick     

Council Member Steve Faber     

Council Member Chris Colomer     

Council Member Michael Yaklich     



 

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE April, 27, 2020 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

N/A 

AGENDA TITLE Ambulance Service to Neponset – Discussion Only 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Council Discussion 

PRESENTER Kevin Shook, Fire Chief 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

Revenue of $28,000 

Budget Line Item: Revenue 01-22-349.1 

Balance Available N/A 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[ ] Yes  [X] No

PURPOSE Discussion on contract with Neponset Fire Protection 
District for emergency ambulance service.  

BACKGROUND Following discussion at two consecutive council 
meetings and the item approved during a third 
meeting in the spring of 2019 a contract for service 
was signed for ambulance service to the Neponset 
Fire Protection District. This contract took effect on 
June 14, 2019. The contract was written as a one-
year contract with the option for both parties to 
extend with financial increases for cost of service 
included for the first four years. 

SPECIAL NOTES 



  Completed by Kevin Shook 

ANALYSIS The City is currently performing this service. It has 
not created any reported hardships on staff on 
responses to local emergencies. The costs of 
operations for the additional responses were 
considered in the original contract. As of April 
13th,2020 while under contract thirty responses to the 
NFPD service area have been logged with a 
comparable historical collection rate to local 
responses.  

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

Standard postings of agenda and current online 
meeting standards. 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

N/A     

STAFF RECOMMENDATION No Recommendation 

PROCUREMENT POLICY 
VERIFICATION 

N/A 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

Neponset response to date 4-13-20 
Neponset Contract 
 

 



Date Complaint Call received On scene Incident closed Total call time Incident loc Transport to: Run # Total billed
Insurance 
Write off

Bad Debt 
write off Collected Balance

7/11/2019 9:06 Abdominal 
Pain/Problems 7/11/2019 9:06 7/11/2019 9:15 9 7/11/2019 10:04 58 Neponset OSF St Luke's 190711-0958 $1,026.00 $482.35 $225.00 $318.65 $0.00

7/26/2019 10:22

Psychiatric 
Problem/Abnormal 
Behavior/Suicide 
Attempt

7/26/2019 10:22 7/26/2019 10:35 13 7/26/2019 11:50 88 Neponset OSF St Luke's

190726-1112 $942.00 $553.36 $388.64 $0.00
7/28/2019 21:49 Falls 7/28/2019 21:49 7/28/2019 21:58 9 7/28/2019 22:39 50 Neponset OSF St Luke's 190728-2148 $914.00 $734.57 $179.43 $0.00
8/26/2019 4:54 Sick Person 8/26/2019 4:54 8/26/2019 5:11 17 8/26/2019 6:09 75 Neponset OSF St Luke's 190826-0555 $1,026.00 $544.72 $434.00 $0.00
8/29/2019 8:01 Falls 8/29/2019 8:01 8/29/2019 8:09 8 8/29/2019 9:00 59 Neponset OSF St Luke's 190829-0851 $916.00 $442.85 $473.15 $0.00
9/8/2019 14:11 Breathing Problem 9/8/2019 14:11 9/8/2019 14:17 6 9/8/2019 15:02 51 Neponset OSF St Luke's 190908-1455 $1,014.00 $442.85 $473.15 $0.00
9/16/2019 14:47 Sick Person 9/16/2019 14:47 9/16/2019 14:56 9 9/16/2019 15:50 63 Neponset OSF St Luke's 190916-1548 $1,068.00 $527.77 $540.23 $0.00
9/18/2019 10:59 Convulsions/Seizur

e 9/18/2019 10:59 9/18/2019 11:08 9 9/18/2019 11:55 54 Neponset OSF St Luke's 190918-1144 $1,028.00 $0.00 $205.60 $822.40 $0.00
9/22/2019 0:22 Assault 9/22/2019 0:22 9/22/2019 0:28 6 9/22/2019 0:53 31 Neponset refusal 190922-0030 $25.00 $0.00 $25.00 $0.00

9/23/2019 10:50
Unknown 
Problem/Person 
Down

9/23/2019 10:50 9/23/2019 11:00 10 9/23/2019 11:13 23 Neponset refusal
190923-1051 $25.00 $0.00 $25.00 $0.00

9/29/2019 10:42 Sick Person 9/29/2019 10:42 9/29/2019 10:49 7 9/29/2019 11:42 60 Neponset OSF St Luke's 190929-1128 $990.00 $465.52 $524.48 $0.00
10/7/2019 13:41 Sick Person 10/7/2019 13:41 10/7/2019 13:49 8 10/7/2019 14:14 33 Neponset refusal 191007-0845 $25.00 $0.00 $25.00 $0.00

10/10/2019 17:47
Unknown 
Problem/Person 
Down

10/10/2019 17:47 10/10/2019 17:57 10 10/10/2019 18:20 33 Neponset refusal
191010-1747 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

10/25/2019 22:00 Cardiac 
Arrest/Death 10/25/2019 22:00 10/25/2019 22:09 9 10/25/2019 22:46 46 Neponset DAS 191025-2214 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

10/30/2019 1:16 Sick Person 10/30/2019 1:16 10/30/2019 1:24 8 10/30/2019 1:53 37 Neponset OSF St Luke's 191030-0114 $926.00 $747.03 $178.97 $0.00
11/17/2019 7:56 Falls 11/17/2019 7:56 11/17/2019 8:08 12 11/17/2019 9:09 73 Neponset OSF St Luke's 191117-0903 $1,112.00 $450.13 $537.04 $114.83
11/26/2019 7:31 Breathing Problem 11/26/2019 7:31 11/26/2019 7:38 7 11/26/2019 8:28 57 Neponset OSF St Luke's 191126-0825 $1,040.00 $515.52 $524.48 $0.00
12/8/2019 2:51 Sick Person 12/8/2019 2:51 12/8/2019 2:58 7 12/8/2019 3:17 28 Neponset refusal 191208-0252 $25.00 $25.00
12/13/2019 6:02 Traffic Accident 12/13/2019 6:02 12/13/2019 6:12 10 12/13/2019 6:23 19 Neponset refusal 191213-0625 $25.00 $25.00
1/1/2020 11:05 Sick Person 1/1/2020 11:05 1/1/2020 11:13 8 1/1/2020 12:12 67 Neponset OSF St Luke's 200101-1158 $773.68 196.59 $577.09 $0.00
1/3/2020 10:26 Falls 1/3/2020 10:26 1/3/2020 10:34 8 1/3/2020 10:40 14 Neponset refusal 200103-0951 $25.00 $25.00 $0.00
2/3/2020 16:39 Falls 2/3/2020 16:39 2/3/2020 16:45 6 2/3/2020 17:36 57 Neponset OSF St Luke's 200203-1731 $1,034.00 509.08 $418.23 $106.69
2/3/2020 20:03 Altered Mental 

Status 2/3/2020 20:03 2/3/2020 20:12 9 2/3/2020 21:04 61 Neponset OSF St Luke's 200203-2051 $1,056.00 $1,056.00

2/9/2020 20:10

Psychiatric 
Problem/Abnormal 
Behavior/Suicide 
Attempt

2/9/2020 20:10 2/9/2020 20:19 9 2/9/2020 20:59 49 Neponset OSF St Luke's

200209-2035 $854.00 412.5 $351.77 $89.73
2/14/2020 17:36 Stroke/CVA 2/14/2020 17:36 2/14/2020 17:48 12 2/14/2020 18:35 47 Neponset OSF St Luke's 200214-1737 $1,078.00 $1,078.00
2/20/2020 17:43 Sick Person 2/20/2020 17:43 2/20/2020 17:50 7 2/20/2020 18:46 56 Neponset OSF St Luke's 200220-1838 $1,018.00 473.77 $544.23 $0.00

2/22/2020 15:41

Psychiatric 
Problem/Abnormal 
Behavior/Suicide 
Attempt

2/22/2020 15:41 2/22/2020 15:47 6 2/22/2020 16:28 49 Neponset OSF St Luke's

200222-1550 $864.00 416.82 $356.29 $90.89
3/15/2020 19:02 Sick Person 3/15/2020 19:02 3/15/2020 19:10 8 3/15/2020 20:38 88 Neponset OSF St Luke's 200315-2027 $1,018.00 $1,018.00
3/18/2020 5:27 Falls 3/18/2020 5:27 3/18/2020 5:35 8 3/18/2020 5:50 23 Neponset refusal 200318-0547 $25.00 $25.00
3/30/2020 0:40 Electrocution/Light

ning 3/30/2020 0:40 3/30/2020 0:50 10 3/30/2020 1:04 24 Neponset refusal 200330-0048 $0.00 $0.00

30 calls Avg  8.66 minutes Avg  49.1 minutes

20 transports/ 
9 refusals/ 1 
DAS TOTALS $19,872.68 $7,915.43 $505.60 $7,667.23 $3,629.14

Response time 
in Minutes

Neponset Fire Prtotection District EMS Calls June 14, 2019 through present April 13, 2020)


	Agenda 04-27-2020
	Monday, April 27th, 2020

	CM Memo
	Training Mandates and articles related to training-04202020165249
	WARRANT LIST 04-27-2020
	Azavar Update April 2020
	Staff Report - Res 5208 DSBSP
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	Res 5208 DSBSP 04-27-20
	Discussion - Hinton - 2020 Street Maintenance Program  4-27-20
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	Res 5209 - Hinton - Staff Report - Resolution for Maintenance  4-27-20
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	Res 5209- Hinton - Resolution - Resolution for Maintenance 4-27-20
	Res 5209 - Hinton - Attachment - Resolution for Maintenance 4-27-20
	Res 5209 - Hinton - Attachment - Resolution for Maintenance 4-27-20
	Res 5209 - Hinton - Attachment - Resolution for Maintenance 4-27-20
	Res 5209 - Hinton - Attachment - Resolution for Maintenance 4-27-20
	Res 5209 - Hinton - Attachment - Resolution for Maintenance 4-27-20
	Res 5209 - Hinton - Attachment - Resolution for Maintenance 4-27-20
	Res 5209 - Hinton - Attachment - Resolution for Maintenance 4-27-20
	Res 5209 - Hinton - Attachment - Resolution for Maintenance 4-27-20
	Res 5210 - Hinton - Staff Report - South Water Tower Coating  4-27-20
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	Res 5210 - Hinton - Attachment - South Water Tower Coating 4-27-20
	Res 5210 - Hinton - Attachment 1 - South Water Tower Coating 4-27-20
	Res 5210 - Hinton - Attachment 2 - South Water Tower Coating 4-27-20
	Res 5210 - Hinton - Attachment 3 - South Water Tower Coating 4-27-20

	Res 5210- Hinton - Resolution - South Water Tower Coating 4-27-20
	Res 5211 - Hinton - Staff Report - Tower Coating Inspection 4-27-20
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	Res 5211 - Hinton - Attachment - Tower Coating Inspection 4-27-20
	Res 5211 - Hinton - Attachment - Tower Coating Inspection 4-27-20
	a. Review abrasive and coating materials for approved manufactures.

	Res 5211 - Hinton - Attachment 2 - Tower Coating Inspection 4-27-20
	Res 5211 - Hinton - Attachment 3 - Tower Coating Inspection 4-27-20

	Res 5211- Hinton - Resolution - Tower Coating Inspection 4-27-20
	Res 5212 - Hinton - Staff Report - 2020 CIPP Program  4-27-20
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	Res 5212 - Hinton - Attachment  - 2020 CIPP Program 4-27-20
	Res 5212 - Hinton - Attachment  - 2020 CIPP Program 4-27-20
	Res 5212 - Hinton - Attachment 1 - 2020 CIPP Program 4-27-20
	Res 5212 - Hinton - Attachment 2 - CIPP 4-27-20

	SKM_C55820042407390

	Res 5212- Hinton - Resolution - 2020 CIPP Program 4-27-20
	Res 5213 - Hinton - Attachment - Ratify Force Main Replacement Costs 4-27-20.docx
	Res 5213 - Hinton - Resolution - Ratify Force Main Replacement Costs 4-27-20
	Staff Report RES 5214 -MTM Interest Program
	Interest Relief Letter 04_2020
	SmBus Interest Application 2020-04-23
	SBT Loan 20684 Payment history 04_2020
	Res 5214 MTMInterestPaymentProgram
	Res 5215 Small Business Loan Program
	Small Business Loan Program
	Small Business Loan Program

	small business loan amoritization schedule
	CONSIDERING BUYING A NEW CAR?

	Staff Report - Discussion on Ambulance Service to Neponset
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	Neponset response to date 4-13-20 (2)
	Sheet1




